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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2016

The directors present Lhewr report and the audited consalidated financial statements for JCAP Group Holdings ple {(IGHP) (‘the Company’) and
its subsichary comparues (together the Group } for the year ended 31 March 2016

Principal activity, business review and future developments

The Company 1s a holding company and corporate treasury vehicle for ICAP ple and its subsidiary companes (together the ICAP ple Group')

The Company s incorparated and dormiciled in England and Wales. The regestered office 1s 2 Broadgate London EC2M 7UR

Areview of business actmties future developments and a descaption of the prinopal isks and uncertamises Facing the Group is given inthe strategic
repost on page 3 and 4

Dwidends

For the year ended 31 March 2016 dividends of £128m (2014/15- £255m) were paid ta ICAP plc the ultrnate parent company

Goihg concern

The Graup’s business actities, together with the factors kely (o aflect its Future development, performance and posstien are set out In the
strategic report After reviewing the Group s annual budget hquidity requirements plans and financing arrangements the directors are
satisfied that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue to operate for the foreseeable future and confirm that the
Company and the Group are gong concems Management also obtained an extension of the FCA s consohidation regulatory requnrements
waver which runs untl December 2017 (previously Apri 2016), should the disposal of IGBB not complete before 31 December 2016

At 31 March 20186, the Group had committed headroom under its core credit faclities of £315m which incorporates a swangline facility of up
to @ $200m, with a matunity date of March 2018 (see note 9) Under the agreement for these credit facilitres the Group and the ICAP pk
Group are requered to comply with certan covenants As at the balance sheet date, the Group and the ICAP plc Group compfied with the terms
of allits financial covenants and there are no indicalions for the directors to believe that the Group and the ICAP plc Growp wil fadl to comply
with these covenants m the foreseeable future

For the above reasons the drectors continue to adopt the gong concern basis in preparing these financial staternents.

Chantable donations

The Group takes part m the annual ICAP Chanty Day where the revenue for one day 1s donated to nominated chantes Duning the year the Group
made chantable donations amountng to £7 Sm (2014/15- £8 0m)

Disabiity policy
The Group's equal oppartursty and dversity policy are govemed by its parent, ICAP ple and are disdosed in full in its annual report.

Events after the balance sheet date

On 13 Apnl 2016, the Group acquired Enso Finanaal Analytics (ENSQ) a leading prowider of a data analytics platform for hedge funds and
prme brokers from its founders (Matthew Bernard, Michael Gentile and Dwaine Alleyne} and other mmonty stakeholders

The Group made its first mvestment i ENSO in June 2013, followed by a subsequent mvestment n October 2014 ENSO will become a
subsidiary of ICAP's PTRI dmsion. The acquuahion was led by Euclid Opportuntties, ICAP s early-stage fintech nvestment incubator

ENSO provides powerful portfoho analytics to the hedge fund and asset management industry ts tearn of prmne brokerage asset
management technology and data specialists deliver entfiable and measurable operational insight on counterparty credit nsk collateral
management, and portfolo financng and treasury funchions With mare than $1tron tatal assets under advisoey ENSQ pranndes operatond

rsights and key anatytres to many of the workd's most successful fund managers
On 1 June 2016 the Company transferred its investment n1Swap Limited to its direct subsihary ICAP Global Broking Holdings Limited as a capital
contribution,

On 8 July 2016, the Company transferred ts entve nterest i ICAP Amenca Investments Limsted to ICAP Global Brolang Holdwngs Limsted m
connechon with a global alignment of busmess management and legal enbtity governance within the ICAP Group

Independent Auditors

The Company's auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their wilingness to continue i office and are deemed reappomted n
the next finanaal penod

Provision of information to auditors

So far as each person who was a director at the dale of approving this report s aware there 15 no relevant audit mformation beng mformation
needed by the auditors m connection with prepanng ther repart of whch the auditors are unaware. Bach director has taken all the steps it he s
obkged to take as a director in order to make him aware of any refevant audit wfarmanion and te estatish that the auditors are aware of that
information,



ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2016 continued

Drrectors
The drrectors of the Company wha held office during the year and up to the date of sigrung the financeal statements, were:

D Gregg Resigned 28 Apnl 2016

O C Ireland

D A Abrehart

K Pigaga

1 Chamberlain Appowted 28 Apnl 2016

S Bridges Appointed 11 September 2015

Statement of directors’ responsibllities
The directors are responsible for preparing the directors report and financaial statements n accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare finanaal statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have prepared the
Company and Group financial statements m accardance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Ewropean
Uruon {CU) Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far
view of the state of affars of the Company and the Group and of the profit os loss of the Group for that year

In prepanng these financial statements the drrectors are required to
+  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
s make judgements and accountimg estimates that are reasonable and prudent

s state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the EU have been followed subject to any matenal departures drsclosed and explaned
o the financial statements, and

»  prepare the financial statements on the gaing concern basss unless it 1s inapproprate Lo presume that the Company and the Group
will conteue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficent to show and explain the Company’s and the Graups
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posibon of the Company and the Group and enable thern to
ensure that the financial statements comply wath the Companses Act 2006 They are also responsible for safequarding the assets of the
Company and the Group and hence for takmg reasonabla steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other wregulanties

Directors’ statement pursuant to the Disclosure and Transparency Rules

The directors are also required by the Drsdosure and Transparency Rules to ndude a management report containing a fair review of the
business and a description of the principa risks and uncertainties facing the Company and the Group Each of the directors confirms that, to
the best of thewr knowledge and behef

« the financial statements, prepared in accordance wath IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets Rabdives,
financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consohdabion taken as a whole,

»  the management report disclosures which are contained in the business review and include a far review of the development and
performanice of the business and the position of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the prinaipat nisks and uncertainties that they face

s there s no refevant audit nformation of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

s 1ihey have taken al the steps that they cught to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to estabhsh that the Company's auditors are aware of that infermation

14 July 2016




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
Strateglc report for the year ended 31 March 2018 continued

The directoss present therr strategic report and the audited consolidated financiat statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016

Business review

The Group s business provides trade execution platforms and technology based workflow/nsk mitigation solutions to the global
financial markets Our services connect market participants and faalitate the flow of money and assets safely through the systems
needed to make econormies work efficiently We are focused on providing our custamers wath innovative products that enhance their
effiaency, reduce their nisk and mprove their cost effectiveness Qur customers trust us to provide consistent and efficient access to
the nght product at the nght price The barniers to entry in this arena appear low, but our kard-won and nigorously mamtained
reputation gives us competitve advantage

in November 2015, ICAP plc announced that it had entered nto a Transaction winch wall, when completed, involve the disposal of ICAP
plc Group’s global hybnd voice broking and information business, including its associated technalogy and broking platforms (induding -
Swap and Fusion), certain of our joint ventures and our assocates (IGBB) to Tullett Prebon For the year ended 31 March 2016 the
Group s performance 1s therefore reported in the Group consolidated income statement separately for contimung and discontinued
operations (net of tax) Discontinued operations consist of finanaals attnbutable to IGBB, adjusted for certain provisions i the SPA,

For the year ended 31 March 2016 the Group (including discontnued) reported revenue of £1,129 mifion 5% below the prior year

Dunng the course of the year, the Group’s trading performance was smpacted by the ongoing combmation of structural and cyclical
factors including hustoncally low and negative interest rates, low levels of volatfity and bark deleveraging resulting m reduced nsk
appetite from bank customers This was partly offset by the increase in trading actmty m emerging market currency pairs on EBS
Market, and greater demand for nsk mitigation products such as tnReduce and triResolve

Consistent with the ICAP plc Group's growth strategy, IGHP continues to make significant investment 1n all divisions Dunng the year
the Group invested £96 mullion in new business fnes ncluding forwards on EBS Direct, BrokerTec Oirect and tnResolve Margin.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, Electronic Markets’ revemie decreased by 4% on a conslant currency basts and increased by 1%
on a reported basis to £262 milkon (2014/15 £259 milon) The trading operating profit fell to £78 milion (2014/15 £93 milfion)
and the trading operating profit margin decreased to 30% from 36% as £54 mufhon (2014/15 £25 milbon) nvestment i the
development of new products and functionality on the electronic trading platforms was charged to the income statement

For the year ended 31 March 2016, Post Trade Risk and Information s revenue ncreased by 5% on a constant currency basis and
mncreased by 7% on a reported basis to £245 mullion (2014/15 £228 mdhon) The trading operating profit remaied flat at £97
muhon (2014/15 £97 million) and the trading operating profit margin reduced by 3 percentage points to 40% prmanty drven by
continued mvestment in new solutions

The Group reported a trading operating profit of £208 rmulbon, profit margin reduced to 18% (2014715 20%) The decrease in the
trading operating profit ncludes the negative impact of the year -on-year adverse movernent from FX losses of £14 million
Additionally, the synerges achieved in the year from the 2014/15 cost savings programme were reinvested during the year in the
development of new products and technological solutions across the businesses

Exceptional items

The Group disclases separately in the notes to the accounts items that are nan-recurnng and matend in terms of both size and nature. Thes
allows appropriate visibility of these items and reflects how information 1s reviewed by management. It allows focus on the Group's
trading performance, as wefl as due attention specificalty on the exceptional items

For the year to March 2016 exceptional items were £39 milkon (2014715 £73 mifion) before a tax ¢redit of £6 milbon {2014/15
£16 mulkon) This includes £8 mullion relating to conbinuing operations (2014/15 £15 million) and £31 milion relating to discontinued
operatrons (2014715 £58 million)

The discontinued exceptional costs represent Transaction-related costs including costs of sale and separation costs that were ncurred
and prowvided at 31 March 2016 The prowision at 31 March 2016 does not include those Transaction-related costs which do not
meet the provision recognition cnitena The £8 milhon continuing exceptional costs relate to exiting non-core busmesses within
Hectronic Markets and are therefore presented in the continuing income statement.

Outlook

Desprite ongoing subdued market conditions this has been a year of good progress and positive strategic change for the Group

Trading activity since the start of the new financial year, however continues to be challenging The Group is confident that the

transformation of the Group and the continued ivestment in new products and technalogy will result in long-term growth and
wnprovement in profitability driving sustained shareholder value creation



ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
Strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2016 continued

Key performance indicators (KPIs)
The Group s operations are managed on a dwisional basrs which are momtored using certain KPis The development performance and posiLion
of the ICAP plc Group which smciudes the Group are discussed in the ICAP ple 201 6 Annual Report which does not form part of this report

Risk management, principal risks and uncertainties

The Group 15 predomnantly exposed to operational strategic, and liquidity nsk The Group's risk managerment 15 consistent with that of ICAP pic
Group whereby nsk management s as dynarmic as the global market in which it operates The ICAP ple Group evolves its risk managesment process
and contmually seeks to improve it. Looking forward to 2016/17 the nsk focus will be on.

- monitonng market conditions especially the tmpact of ol prices and considerations of a potentid UK ext from the EU
- identifying growth and business opportunibies through the implementation of requlatory changes such as MiFID Il

- managing the change nsks associated with the Transachon

- further enhancing of our nsk capital modeltng and

- enhanang nsk management’s business intefigence capability

Amore detaled sk management report of the ICAP pic Group which ncludes the Group can be found m the ICAP pic 2016 Annwal Report, which
does not form part of thes report.

By order gi-the Board

' DClrefand 14 Wty 2016

Dwector




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

Independent auditors’ report to the members of ICAP Group Holdings plc
Report on the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opimion

- ICAP Group Holdings pk’s Group financial statements and Company fnancial statements (the *financial staternents’) give a true and far
view of the state of the Groups and of the Company's affars as at 31 March 2016 and of the Group s profit and the Group's and the
Company’s cash flows for the year then ended

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared i3 accordance with Intermational Finanaal Reporting Standards (TFRSs™) as
adopted by the European Union

- the Company financid staterments have been properly prepared in accordance wath IFRSs as adopted by the European Urson and as appled
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the Group finanad statements, Article 4 of the 1AS

Regulation

- the financial statements have been prepared n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the group
finanaal statements, Artide 4 of the IAS Regulation

What we have audited
The finanoal statements, mduded withm the Group and Company fmanaal staterments (the “Annual Report”), compnse
- the Consoiidated and Company balance sheet as at 31 March 2016
- the Consokdated income statement and Consolidated statement of camprehensive ncome for the year then ended,
- the Consolidated and Company statement of cash flows for the year then ended
- the Consolidated and Company statement of changes n equity for the year then ended
+  the accounting policies and
~  the notes to the financal statements which include ather explanatory mformation

The finanaal reparting framework that has been apphied i the preparabion of the financid statements 1s IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
and apphcable law and, as regards the Company finanaal statements as apphed n accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

In applying the finanaia reporting framework, the drrectars have made a number of subjective jJudgerments, for example m respect of significant
accounting estimates. In making such estimates they have made assumptions and considered future events

Opiruons on other matters prescribed by the Comparies Act 2006

In our opian, the informabion given m the Stratege Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for whuch the finanaal statements are
prepared 15 consistent with the financal statements.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received

Under the Compamees Act 2006 we are required to report to you if n our opireon.
- we have not recetved all the mformation and explanatians we requaire for our audit or

- adequate accountng reconds have not been kept by the Company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been recerved from branches
not visited by us, o

- the Company financial staterments are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns
We have no exceptions to report aring from this responsibdity
Directors’ remuneration

Under the Comparses Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, m our opnton, certan disclosures of directors rermuneration speaified by law
are not made. We have no excephions to repart ansing from this responsibdity




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
Independent auditors’ report to the members of ICAP Group Holdings plc continued

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audt
Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explaned mare Fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilibes the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view

Qur responsiblity 15 to audit and express an opiion on the financial statements in accordance with apphcable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) ("15As (UK & Ireland)”} Those standards requrre us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditors

This report, induding the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accardance wath Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not in gving these opmions accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or
to any other person to whom thrs report 15 shown or nto whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our pnor consent in writing

What an audit of financial statements mnvolves

We conducted our audit in accordance with 1SAs (UK & treland) An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures i the
financial statements sufficent to give reasonable assurance that the finanaal slatements are free from matenal musstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

- whether the accounting policies are approprate to the Groups and the Company's arcumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adequatety disclosed,

~  the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors and
- the overall presentation of the financial staterments

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors judgements against avalable evidence, forming our own judgements
and evaluating the disclosures in the financal statements

We test and examine informalion, using samphbng and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to provide a reasonable
basis for us to draw condusions We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a
combination of both

th addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to entify matenal mconsistencies with the audited
financial staterents and to identify any information that s apparently materially mcorrect based on or materally inconsistent with, the
knowiedge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matend misstatements or
inconsistencies we consiler the implicabions for our report

Olitoplar 40 Jud

Chrstopher Row! (Seruor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

14 luly 2016
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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Trading ﬁ,;,.m': *;.,.,I ot
Em tm I m
Revenue 1 459 - - 459
Operating expenses 2 (326) {80) (8) (414)
Other income - - - -
Operating profit 1 133 [§:16)} (8) 45
Finance ncome 8 1 1 - 2
Finance costs 8 {38) - - (38)
Share of loss of assocates after tax 21 (3) - - (3)
Share of profit of junt ventures after tax 20 - - - -
Profit before tax from continuing operations 93 (79) (8) 6
Tax 6 (29) 16 1 {(12)
Loss for the year from continuing operations 64 (63) (7} {6)
Profit for the year from discontinued operattons 4(a) 67 - (26) 41
Profit for the year 139 {63} (33) 35
Attributable to
Qwners of theCompany 134 {63) (33) 38
Non-controlfing nterests {3) - - (3}
13 (63) (33) 35




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Acqushion and Exceptional

trsated) wa R Seedms o "
Revenue 1 468 - - 468
Operating expenses 2 (323) (59) (15) (397)
Other mcome (1) - - ()
Operating profit 1 144 (59) (15) 70
Finance income 8 1 - - 1
Financecosts 8 (49) - - (49}
Share of loss of assoaates after tax n (2) - - (2)
Share of profit of joint ventures after tax 20 - . - -
Profit before tax from continuing operations 94 (59) {15) 20
Tax a {23) 15 3 {5)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 71 (44) {12) 15
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 4(a) 91 - (25) 46
Profit for the year 162 (44) (57) 61
Attributable to
Owners of the Company 163 (a4) 57 62
Non-controfing interests (1) - - (1)
162 {44) {57 61




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Yaar anded

Yoo endid

n h;:’: 1 March
o n e
Profit for the year 35 61
Other comprehensive income/{expense) from continuing operations
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met
Revaluation ganin the year 25(a) - 1
Cash flow hedges
- fag valuelosses 25(a) (20} (37)
— far value gans transferred to income statement 25(a) 17 29
3 (8)
Exchangedifferences 42 99
Deferred tax recogrised m other comprehensive mcome 1 -
Other comprehensive mcome/ (expense) for the year, net of tax, from conuinuing operations 40 92
Other comprehensive income/ (expense) for the year, net of tax, from discontinued operations 18 4
Total comprehensive income/ (expense) for the year 93 157
Total comprehensive income/(expense) attributable to
Owners of theCompany 94 154
Non-controfing mterests {1) 3
83 157

10




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

Group Company
As ol Asal As et Asat
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2016 o5 2016 s
M om [ . Em
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets arising on consobidaton 13 826 916 - -
Intangible assets arising from development expenchiture 12 88 115 - -
Property and equipment 23 30 32 - -
Irvestment in subsichanies 19 - - 4,406 4,937
Investment in joint ventures 20 L 8 - -
Investment in assooates 21 45 61 10 -
Deferred taxassets 8 11 5 - -
Trade and ctherrecervables 16 9 5 - -
Available-for-sale Investments 2¢ 9 15 2 -
Amounted owed from affiiates - 70 - -
1,019 1,227 4,418 4,937
Current assets
Trade and other recewables 16 59,985 24,572 591 401
Cash and cashequivalents 10 156 440 11 43
Restricted funds 10 24 36 - -
Held for saleassets ab) 21,272 21 - -
81,437 25,069 602 444
Total assets 82,456 26,296 5,020 5,381
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 {60,183) (24,784) (1,224) (2,394)
Borrowngs 2 (64) (30) {64} -
Tax payable (43) {(35) - -
Provisions 14 (8) (18) - -
Held for sale habilities 4(b) (20,787) (4)

{81,085) (24,871) (1,288) _ (2.394)

Non-current habilities

Trade and other payables 17 {12) (36) 8 (30)
Borrowmngs g {384) {252) {384) (252)
Amounts owed ta affliates (580) {700) (580) (699)
Deferred taxliabihties & (67} (73) - -
Retirement benefit obhgations (3) (6) - -
Provisions 14 (13} (19) - -
(1,059)  (1,086) (972) (981)
Tota fiabilies (82,144) (25,957) (2,260)  (3,375)
Net assets 312 339 2,760 2,006
Equity
Capital andreserves
Called up share capital 24 233 233 233 233
Other reserves 25 297 300 - (2)
Translabon 255 197 - -
Retaned earmngs (514) (433) 2,527 1,775
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 27 297 2,760 2,006
Nen-controling nterests 41 42 - -
Total equity 312 339 2,760 2,006

tes on pages 8 to 68 were approved by the board on 14 kily 2016 and signed on its behalf

11




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY

c?p:: ru‘:,v: T Ratalnad t:‘m#:f m:l::; Totd
Yoor ancled 31 March 2018 (note 2442 (note 2560) £m tames teCempany terat &m
Balance at 1 April 2015 233 300 197 (433) 297 42 339
Profit for the year - - - 38 38 (3) 35
Cther comprehensive
ncome/{expense)
Cash flow hedges - (3) - - (3) - (3}
Exchange differences - - 58 - 58 2 60
Income tax - - - 1 1 - k|
Total comprehensive - {3) 58 38 94 (1) 93
mncome/(expense) for the
year
QOther movements in non- - - - - - 2 2
controling interests
Share-based payments m - - - 8 B - B
the year
Dividends paid m the year - - - {128) (128) (2) (130)
Balance at 31 March2016 233 297 255 (514) 27 41 312

o e i Resned 15 oaren 6 -

Yoar orecd 31 MaThI01S 20 roke 2503 it 3 the Company v mn:
Baance at 1 April 2014 233 30/ aB (247) 391 39 430
Profit for the year - . 62 62 (1) 61
Other comprehensive
income/(expense)
Cash Row hedges - (&) - 8) - (8)
Exchange differences - 99 99 4 103
Revauaton gans realsed in the - ] 1 - 1
year
Total comprehensive - (M 99 62 154 3 157
income/ (expense) for the
yeaxr
Share-based payments in the - - - 7 7 - 7
year
Dradends pad in the year - - - (255) (255) - (255)
Balance at 31 March 2015 233 300 197 (433) 297 42 339

12



ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY

Yoaremied 1 Maech 2016 el n-g::; " fho
Balance as at 1 April 2015 233 (2) 1,775 2,006
Profit for the year - - 880 880
Hedgng movemnent - 2 - 2
Total comprehensve mcome for the year - 2 880 882
Dredends pad in the year - - (128) (128)
Balance as at 31 March 2016 233 2,527 2,760
Share Hedgng Aoianed
Yearended 11 March2015 a":’: "’“g ""ﬁ m:-:
Batance as at 1 Apri 2014 233 - 1726 1,959
Profit for Lhe year - - 304 304
Hedging moverment - {(2) - {2)
Totat comprehensive ncome for the year - (2) 3C4 302
Owidends pad i the year - - (255) (255)
Balance as at 31 March 2015 233 (2) 1775 2006

i3




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

Gap Company
Year gnded Year ended Yaar ended Year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2016 o015 015 ms
Nate [ [ [ tm
Cash flows from operatingactivities 10(a) 23 192 (139) 1499
Cash flows from investing activiues
Dandends recenved from subsidianes - - 69 416
Dwidends recerved fromassociates 5 4 - -
Dandends recerved fromjomt ventures - 1 - -
Other equity dwidends recerved 1 - - -
Payments o acquire property and equipment (%7) (8) - -
intangible development expenditure (54) (48) - -
Acquisition of avalable-for-sale mvestments {5) - - -
Acqursitron of interests in subsidianes - m (N (1719)
Proceeds from disposal of subsxfianes . 1 - -
Acquistion of assoaates aind jomnt ventures “an - - -
Net cash flows from investing actvities (87) (51) 62 (1303)
Cash flows from financingactvities
Dwidends pard to non-controfing nterest (2) - - -
Dradends paxd to owners of the Company (128) {141) (128) (141}
Repayment of borrowings - (259) 171 (259)
Funds recerved from borrowing, net of fees 170 - - -
Net cash flows from financing activities 40 (400} 43 {400}
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (24) (259} (34) {204}
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 410 657 43 247
FX adjustments 17 12 -
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of the year* 10{c) 403 410 43

*  Net of £83m overdraft a3 st 31 March 2018 (2014715 - E30m)

Cash flows of discontinued operations

Cash inflows from operating activities of £25m, cash outflows from investing actmties of £15mand cash outflows from financing

actvibies of £2m were incurved in the year relating to the discontinued business

14




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
BASIS OF PREPARATION

Preparation of financial statements

The consofidated financial statements of the Group and the separate financal staternents of the Company have been prepared n
accordance with IFRSs asissued by the 1ASB and the nterpretations issued by the tFRS Interpretations Comettee (IFRIC) and ther
predecessor bodies and as endorsed by the EU and the Comparies Act 2006 applicable to comparues reporting under IFRS In
publishing the parent company finanaal statements here together with the Group financidl statements, the Company has taken
advantage of the exemption m section 408(3) of the Camparnies Act 2006 not to present its indvdual ncome statement indnndual
statement of comprehensive ncome and refated notes that farm a part of these financal statements The financial statements are
prepared in pounds sterling, whuch s the functronal currency of the Company and presented in milbions ICAP Group Holdings plc is
meorporated and domualed in the UK

The significant accounting palicies adopted by the Group and the Company are mcluded within the notes to whch they relate

Where the Group acquires entities from withun the CAP plc Group these business cormbnations are under common control (in this case
ICAP pkc) and therefore outside the scope of IFRS3 Business Combinations’ In pror years for such business combmations under
common control the Group elected to apply predecessor basts of accounting Under this method the consolidated financid statements
were prepared as if all the entities had dways been combined Therefore, the Group did not revalue the newly acquired companses’
balance sheets at the date of acqusition to far vatue and did not recognsse any new separately identifiabie intangible assets As a result
of the corporate structwe rearganisation and the proposed completion of the disposal of IGBB, the Group has chosen to adopt 3
different method of predecessor accounting Under this method the acquisition of entsties under comimon control s consohdated
prospectively thereby wanng the requirement to show effects on the earhiest penod presented The mpact of the change on the
consolidated incarme statement for the year ended 31 March 2016 s £nil (2014715 - £n) The impact on the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 March 2016 s £nil (2014/15 - Fnd)

The preparation of financial statements requires management to apply judgements and the use of estimates and assumptions about
future conditrons Management considers impatrment of goodwill and other ntangible assets arsing on consobdation (nate 13)
nvestment in jomt ventures and assocates (notes 20 and 21}, contingent fialnhbes (note 15}, and the presentation of exceptional
1tems (note 3) to be the areas where iIncreased judgement s requred Further mformation about key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertanty are set out m the relevant notes to the finanaid statements Estimates and
assurnptions are continuously evaluated and are based on historical expenence and other factars, mduding expectations of future
events that are believed ta be reasonable under the arcumstances Due to the wherent uncertainty in making estimates actual results
reported in future penods may be based on amounts which differ from those estimates Revrstons to accounting estimates are
recognised i the penod n which the estinate s revised and in any future penods affected The Group and the Company's finanaid
statements have been prepared on a guing concem bass

tn November 2015 the Group announced that it had entered into a Transaction which will when completed nvalve the disposal of is
global hybnd voice broking and informatien business, including the assocated technology and brokang platforms (induding 1-Swap and
Fusion) and certain joint ventures and associates (together IGBB) to Tullett Prebon The disposal is subject to approvals from
requlatory authonties across junisdictions The Group 1s committed to a plan to sell having signed the SPA with Tullett Prebon and it
antcipated that the required regulatory approvals will be obtatned and the Transaction will complete in 2016

The IGBB business disposal meets the cntena of IFRSS for held for sale dassification. The cntena for hedd for sale are met as the
business 1s available for sale n its present conditron, and the sale 15 hughly probable The results of the IGBB business subject to certain
provisions in the SPA, are presented as discantinued operatrons in the consolidated mcome statement as the sale 15 a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major Iine of business The assets and habiliies attnbutable to IGBB, also subject 1o certain
provisions in the SPA, are presented as held for sale assets and liabilities on the face of the balance sheet.

Presentation of the Incomestatement

The Group mamtains a columnar format for the presentation of its consohidated income statement. The columnar format enables the
Group to continue its practice of improving the understanding of its restdts by presenting its trading profit Trading profit 1s reconciled
to profit before tax on the face of the consolidated ncome statement which also ndudes acquision and disposal costs and
exceptonal tems

The colurmn acquastion and disposal costs incudes: any gams losses or other associated costs on the full or partia! disposal of
mvestments associates jomt ventures or subsidianes and costs associated with a business cormbinabion that do not consttute fees
refating Lo Lhe arrangement of finanang amortisabion o imparrment of intangible assets ansing on consokdation, any re-measurement
after intial recognition of deferred contmgent consideration whach has been classified as a hability and any gains or fosses on the
revafuation of previous interests The colurnn may also mclude items such as gains or losses on the seitlemant of pre-exsting
relationshaps with acquired businesses and the re-measurement of kabiities that are above the value of indemnufication.

Items which are of a non-recurning nature and materal when considering both size and nature are disclosed separately to gve a
clearer presentation of the Group s results These are shown as exceptional items on the face of the consolidated income statemnent

When the Group has disposed of or intends to dispose of a business component that represents a major fine of busmess or geographic
area of operations, 1t classifies such operations as discontinued The post tax profit or koss of the discontinued operations is shown as a
single line on the face of the consolidated income statement, separate from the other results of the Group The consoldated ncome
statement for the comparative periods is rostated to show the discontinued operations separate from those generated by the
CONtiNuNG Operations
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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
BASIS OF PREPARATION continued

Basis of consolidation
The Group s consolidated financial statements include the results and net assets of the Company its subsidiaries and the Group s share of
wmnt ventures and associates

Subsidiaries
An entity s reqarded as a subsidiary i the Group has control aver its strategic, operating and financial policies and nitends (o hald the
nvestment on a long-term basis for the purpose of securing a contribution to the Group's actmities

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisition of subsidianes by the Group The cost of acquisition s
measured al far value of Lhe assets given equity nstruments ssued and Rabilities tncurred or assumed at the date of exchange
identifiable assets acquired and lisbilibies and contingent iabilitres assumed w the business cornbination are measured witially at therr far
values at the acqustion date, irrespective of the extent of any minonty interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the farr value
of the Group s share of the identifiable net assets acquired (s recorded as goodwill If the costs of the acquisition are less thanthe far value
of the net assets acquired the difference 15 recognised directly in the consolidaled income staterment

Fees assocated with an acquisition are expensed asincurred When the Group mcreases its nvestment i an entity resulting n an
assoqate becoming a subsidary the ntangibles related to the acquisition are vatued and the elernent of those not previously

recagnised as a share of net assets are recorded as revaluabion gains realised in Lhe year i olher comprehansve ncome. A change of
ownership that does not result in a loss of control s classified as an equity transaction with the difference between the amount by which
the non-controking nterest is recorded and the Farr value of the consideration received recogmised drectly n equity

Where the Group has issued a put option over shares held by & non-controling interest the Group derecognises the nor-controling nierests and
nstead recogrises a contingent deferred consrderation fability for the estimated amount Bkely to be pad to the

non-controlling interest on exercrse of thase opoons The residual amount representing the difference between any consideration
paid/payable and the non-contralling mterest s share of net assets 1s recogrised m equity Movements i the estmated habity after
ntial recogrition are recogrised within the consolidated ncome statement Where the Group has a cail option over shares held by a
non-controlling nterest, the Graup continues to recognise the nan- controlling nterest untl it 15 certamn that the option will be called. At
that point the accounting treatment 15 the same as for a put option

The results of companies acquired duning the year are Included in the Group s results from the effecuve date of acquisittion The
results of companies disposed of dunng the year areinchuded up to the effective date of disposal

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling nterests as transactions with equity owners of the Group For purchases from non-
controling mnterests the difference between any consieratron paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary 15 recorded in equity Gains or losses on disposats to non-controling nterest s are also recorded in equity

On consolidation the accounting policies of Group comparnies (the Company and sts subsidianes) are conaistent with those applied by the
Group Intercompany transactions balances and unrealised gains on transacuions between Group comparues are efirinsted as part of the
consohdation process Unrealised losses are also elimmated urdess the transaction provides evidence of aumpairment of the asset
transferred

Joint ventures

Ajoint venture 15 an enlity n which the Group has an interest and in the opuion of the directors, exercses joint control over its operating
and financial palictes An nterest exssts where an investment 15 held on along-term basis for the purpose of secunng a coninbubion to the
Group sactvities Following the adoptionof IFR511 Jaint Arrangements and 1AS28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' on @ Apnl
2014 nvestments in jomt ventures are recogrrsed using the equity method Under thismelhod such nwestments are imitially stated at cost,
nchiding attnbutable goodwil and are adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change n the Group s share of net assets

Associates

The Group dlassifies Investments in entities over which it has signeficant nfluence but not control and that are netther subsidianes nor jaint
ventures asassociates Investments n assocuates are recognised using the equity method Under this method suchinvestments are wutially
stated at cost, including attributable goodwill and are adjusted thereafier for the post acquiution change in the Group s share of netassets
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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
BASIS OF PREPARATION continued

Forelgn currencies

In ndivadual enlilies Lransactions denorminated in forexgn currencies are recorded at the prior month dosing exchange rate between the
functional currency and the forengn currency At each end of the reporting pertod manetary assets and habilities that are denominated in
foreign currences are retransiated at the rates prevaring at the end of the reporting peniod Exchange differences are recogrused in the
consofidated Income statement, except for exchange differences ansing on non-monetary assets and kabilities where these form part of the
net investment of an averseas business or are designated as hedges of a net nvestment or cash flow and therefore the changes in value
resultng from exchange differences are recogrsed directly in other comprehensive income Non-monetary sterns carned at histoncal cost
are travslated in the balance sheet at the exchange rate on the ongmnal transaction date Non-rmonetary items measurcd at far value are
translated using the exchanqe rate rufing when the farr value was determmed

On consafidation the results of businesses with non-pound sterling functronal curenaes are translated into the presentational curency of the
Group at the average exchanqe rates for the year where these appromate to the rate at the date of the transactions Assets and lablves of
overseas busmesses are translated nto Lhe presentational currency of the Group at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
penod. Exchange differences ansing are recognised within other comprehensive ncome Curnulative translation differences ansing after the
transition to IFRSs are taken to the consalidated income statement on disposal af the net nvestment

Goodwill and farr value adiustments ansing on the acquisiion of a non-pound sterfing entity are treated as assets and habilitres of that entity
and translated snto the presentationd currency of the Group at the peniod closing rate Where apphcable the Group has elected totreat
goodwill and fair value adjustments arrsng before the date of transition toIFRSs as denorminated in the presentational currency of the
Group

in the consolklated statement of cash flows cash flows denominated in foreign currencies are transkated mto the presentational currency

of the Group at the average exchange rates for the year or at the rate prevailing at the tme of the transaction where more appropriate.

Future accounting developments
At 31 March 2016 the followang standards have been ssued by the 1ASB which are not effective for these consalidated finanaal staternents:

» m July 2014, IASB ssued IFRS9 Financal Instruments which will replace 14539 Financial Instruments Recogrition and Measurement’ The
standard will be effective for annual periods beginmng on or after 1 January 2018 IGHP intends to adopt iFRS9 for its financial statements
for the year ending 31 March 2019 and

= 0 May 2014 IASB ssued IRS15 Revenue from Contracts with Custamers’ wich will replace 14518 ‘Reverue and 14511 Construction Contracts
and other related interpretations on revenue recogriion. The standard will become effective for annuaf penods beginning on or after 1
January 2007 IGHP ntends to adopt IFRS15 for its financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2018

The impact on IGHP financial statements from the adoption of these IFRS standards is currently being assessed and will be disclosed closer to
the time of the adoption
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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Segmental information

The Group has determined its operating segments based on the management information nduding trading revenue and trading
operating profit reviewed on a regular basts by the ICAP plc board. The Group considers the exeautve members of ICAP pic's board to
be the Chief Operating Decision Maker ICAP s three operating segments are Electronic Markets, Post Trade Risk and information
and Global Broking

Revenue compnses brokerage or access fees from its Electronic Markets business, fees from the provision of Post Trade Risk
and Information services and commussion from the Group's Global Broking dvision

Hectronic Markets

The Group acts as an intenmediary for FX, nterest rate derwatives, fixed mcome products and (DS through the Group's electronc
platforms Revenue 1s generated from brokerage fees which are dependent on the average trading volumes The Greup also
charges fees to use the electromc trading platform for access to kquidity in the FX or preacus metal markets.

Post Trade Risk and Information (PTRI}
The Group recesves fees from the sale of finanaal nformation and provision of PTRI services to third parties These are stated
net of VAT, rebates and other sales taxes and recognised in revenue on an accruals basts to match the provision of the service.

Global Broking

Matched principal andstock lending business

Certam Group companies are involved in a non-advisory capacaty as principals m the matched purchase and sale of securiies
and other financial mstruments between our customers Revenue is generated from the difference between the purchase
and sale proceeds and 15 recogrised in full at the time of the commitment by our customers to sell and purchase the secunty
or finanaal nstrument  The revenue generated by the stock lending business is not matenal to the Group

Agency busmess (name give-up)

The Group acts i a non-adwiscry capacity to match buyers and sellers of financial mstruments and rarses invorces for the
service provided The Group does not act as pnncipal in name give-up transachions and only recenves and transrrts orders
between counterparties Revenue is stated net of rebates and discounts, VAT and other sales taxes and is recognised in full
on the date of the trade,

Execution on exchange business

The Group also acts as a broker of exchange-hsted products, where the Group executes customer arders as prmapal and then
novates the trade to the underlying customer’s respective deanng broker for settlement. Revenue 1s generated by raising
an invoice and 15 recognised on the trade date.
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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Segmental nformation continsed

(a) Segmental results relating to the Group’s total operations

Yeur anded 11 March 2018

Post Trade

Elatmnic FRisk and Glotal
Markets information Broling Group
m n [ m
Contnuingoperations.

Revenue per the ICAP Group 258 194 8 460

Adjustment for non IGHP subsidiary comparies N

Raverue per the IGHP Group 458

Trading operating profit/(loss) per the ICAP Group 86 70 (17 139

Adystment for non IGHP subsidiary comparues (6)

Trading operating profit/(ioss) per the IGHP Graup 133
Continuing trading EBIT~ per the ICAP Group 86 67 (14) 139
Adyustment for non IGHP subsidiary companies (6}
Adjustment for non IGHP jomt ventures 1)
Adstment for non IGHP associates (2)

130

Contiunng trading EBIT™ per the IGHP Group

®  TrdngEBIT i the trading profit before deducting net finance cost and tax
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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Segmental information contnued

(a) Segmental results relating to the Group's total operations contnued

Your uncod 31 March 2015
Electrons Mu}:&ﬁ Cicbal
wrets informsten fokdng Grocp
Em m im g
Continuing operations
Revenue per the ICAP Group 254 187 27 468
Adstment for non IGHP subsidiary comparves -
Revenue per the IGHP Group 468
Irading operating profit/(loss) per the ICAP Group 102 70 18) 154
Adjustment for non IGHP subsidiary comparues {1Q)
Trading operating profit/(loss) per the IGHP Group 144
Continuing trading EBIT* per the ICAP Group 102 68 (16) 154
Adjustment for non IGHP subsidiary comparies (10)
Adjustment. for non IGHP loss fromjoint ventures per the IGHP Group (1)
Adustment for non IGHP {Loss)/Profit from associates per the IGHP Group (1)
142

Contwnumng trading EBIT* per the IGHP Group

The Group did not earn more than 10% of 1ts total revenue from any ndividual customer

The Group eamed revenue of £314m (2014715 - £434m)and £468m (2014715 — £460m) from entities i the UK and US respectively
The remander of £347m (2014/15 - £291m) came from vanous entities outsrde the UK and US

(b) Group's continuing and discontinued operations

Year ended 31 March 2018 Vear ended 31 March 2015(restated)
Discontiud Ducorgneod
Contirming (pote4) Group Coaurizng (noge 4) Group
Em &m £m im tm bn
Reverue

- Electronsc Markets 258 4 262 254 5 259
- Post Trade Risk and Information 194 51 245 187 41 228
-~ Glabal Broking 7 615 022 27 671 698
459 670 1,129 468 717 1,185

Trading operatingprofit
~ Electronic Markets 8é (B) 78 102 )] a3
- Post Trade Risk and information 70 27 97 70 27 97
- Global Broking (23) 56 33 {28) 75 47
133 75 208 144 a3 237

Global 8rokang's trading operating loss from continuing operations of £23m (2014/15 - £28m)includes £20m (2014/15 - £14m) of
central support costs and foresgn exchange losses that were charged to the voice broking business for the reporting of the segmental
results but under the SPA will not transfer to the enlarged Tullett Prebon The remanung £3m (2014/15 - £14m) relates to ICAP's

vorce broking business that ts outside the IGBB penmeter Electrorc Markets discontinued operations relates to 1-Swap PTRI

discontinued operations nchudes part of ICAP Information Services (lIS) which prowides voice broking generated data to the market
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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Operating expenses
The table below s presented an a total Group bass, including discontinued aperations
Year ended Yeirendec
Profit before tax s stated after charging 31 March 3 Mach
w06 ms
m in
Trading operatingexpenses
Employee costs* 577 625
information technology costs 138 128
Professional and legal fees (induding auditors remuneration) 41 35
Deprecation and mparrment of property and equipment {exduding IT) 1 5
Governance Costs™ 21 21
Cleanng and settlementfees 17 17
Operating lease rentals — myumumlease payments 18 20
Exchange adjustments 14 4
‘Other 95 92
Trading operatingexpenses 922 947
Acquisition and disposal costs
Amortisation of intangible assets ansing on consoldation 38 55
Impairment of nvestment m assocates** 25
Qther acquistion and disposal costs 17 4
Acquisition and disposal costs 80 59
Exceptional tems (note 3) 39 73
Operating expenses 1,041 1,079
Attributable to
Conbinuing operations 414 397
Discontinued operations{ncte 4) 627 682
1,041 1,079
*  Netemployee costs as per note 7(a)are £600M (2014/15 - mmmmmd:mummmmdnmmam nmmm
of £5m 201415 £33m)and acqueikenand disposal eosts of £1m (2014715 - £1m). Govemance costs include fees assodated with fisk,
* Followsng the dentification of Enpawment indicators Lnder AS39 enparment r p core gy charges of £25m

{stre note 21}

The operating expenses include fees paid to Pnicewaterhouse Coopers LLP for the statutory audit of the company of £40,000
(2014715 - £40,000) Fees pad to the Company's auditor and its associates for services other than the statutary audit of the

company are not disclosed i these accounts since the consolidated accounts of ICAP plc Group disclose these fees ona
consolidated basis
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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Exceptional items

Exceptional tems are non-recurring significant items that are considered matenal in both sze and nature. These are disclosed
separately to enable a full understanding of the Group's finanacial performance.

Year endad Tear wded
¥ darch 31 btk
En i

Exceptional tems before tax
Transaction-relatod costs - discontinued operations 3 -
Other costs - continuing operatrons 8 -
Restructuning programme — employee termunation costs - 33
Restructunng programme — property exits - 18
Restructunng programme — other - 7
Requlatory matters induding associatediega! and professional fees - 15
Total exceptional tems before tax 39 73
Taxcredit (€) {16}
Total exceptional items aftertax 33 57

Attnbutable to

Contiuingoperations 7 12
Discontimued operationsinote 4) 26 45

The drscontnued exceptona items of £31m represent Transaction-related costs arsing from the impending disposal of IGBS,
wncluding costs to sale and separation costs that were incurred and prowded as at 31 March 2016 Other exceptional costs of £8m
relate to exiting non-core businesses within Eleclrome Markets, and are therefore presented in the continuing mcome statement,
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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Discontinued operations and held for sale assets and llabilities
An SPA was signed with Tullett Prebon on 11 November 2015 for the disposal of the ¥GBB business, at whwch parnt it met IFRSS
¢nitena to be classified as held for sale

The disposal s subject to approvals from requlatory authonties across anumber of junsdictions as well as finabsation of certain
commercal terms and 15 expected to be completed in 2016

The results of the IGBB business subject to certamn proviaons in the SPA, are presented as discontinued operations as the sale
5 a single co-ordmated plan to dispose of a separate major bine of business The assets and hiabilities attnbutable to IGBB, also
subject to certain provisions in the SPA, are presented as held for sale assets and habifities on the face of the balance sheet

These assets and habilities were transferred to held far sale at carrying value

(a) Results of discontinued operations

Yazr anrled 31 ptarch 2014 T"‘I'z W;PMW:E v""; "::
Revenue 670 - - 670
Operating expenses {596) - (31) (627)
QOther ncome 1 - - 1
Operating profit from discontinued aperations 75 - (31) 44
Net financencome 1 - - 1
Share of profit of assocates and jomt ventures after tax 7 - - 7
Profit before tax from discontinued operations 83 - (31) 52
Tax (note 6) (16) - 5 (11)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 67 - (26) 41
Attrbutable to
Owners of theCompany 68 - (26) 42
Non-controling nterests (1), - - {1}
67 - (26) 41
Acustos and Excegtiond]
Year ended 31 March 201 S{restated) "’*ﬂ': ""‘“"“’:‘; """n;' 'g
Revenue 717 - - 717
Operating expenses (624) - {58} (682)
Operating profit from discontinued operabions 93 - (58) 35
Net finance ncome 2 - - 2
Share of profit of assocates and jont ventures after tax 8 - - B
Profit before tax from discontinued operatons 103 - (28) 45
Tax (note &) {(12) - LE] 1
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 91 - (45) 46
Attributable to
Owners of theCompany 92 - (45) 47
Non-controling nterests (1) - - {1)
9N - (45) L1
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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.Discontinued operations and held for sale assets and liabilities contnued
(b} Breakdown of assets held forsale

Asat

31 March
oné
B
Nan-current assets
Goodwill and other intangbles ansing on consolidation 69
Other 123
Current assets
Trade and otherrecevables 20,722
Cash and cashequivalents 330
Restricted funds 28
Total held for sale assets 21,272
Current habilities
Trade and other payables (20,668)
Overdraft (81)
Provisions (12)
Other (2)
Non-current habiiies
Trade and other payables (3)
Prowisions (3)
Other {18)
Total held for saleliabiliues (20,787)
485

Net assets held for sale
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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.Dividends payable

For the year ending 31 March 2016 total dvidends of £128m (2014/15 - £255m) were proposed by the board with a
payment of £128m {2014/15 - £156m and £99m)

6.Tax

Tax on the profit for the year compnses both aurrent and deferred tax as well as adjustments in respect of pnor years Taxos charged
or credited to the consclidated income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited to other comprehensive
ncome o directly to equity, in which case the tax is also mcluded m other comprehensive ncame or directly within equaty respectvely

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxableincome for the period, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted,
by the end of the reporting period

Deferred tax 1s recognised using the liability method, in respect of temporary differences between the carrying value of assets
and habiities for reporting purposes and the tax bases of the assets and habilibes Deferred tax 1s caloulated at the rate of tax
expected to apply when the liabibty s settled or the asset &s reahsed A deferred tax asset 1s recognsed only to the extent that
It 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which the asset can be utilised

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences ansing on nvestments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and intangjibles
ansing on consohdation, except where the tming of the reversal of the temporary difference 5 controlled by the Group andt 1s
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax iabilities are offset aganst deferred tax assets within the same taxable entity or qualifying local tax group where
there 1s both the legal nght and the mtention to settle on a net bass or to realise the asset and settle the liability smultaneously

Calculations of current and deferred tax lisbility have been based on ongoing discussions with the relevant tax authonties,
management’s assessment of legal and professional adwce, case law and other relevant quidance Where the expected tax
outcome of these matters i different from the amounts that were recorded mitidly, such differences will mpact the current
and deferred tax amounts in the penod in which such determination s made
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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Tax continued
Tax charged to the consolidated incoma statement in the year
The following tax charge breakdown s based on a total Group basis (induding discontinued operations)

Yaar ended Yearended
31 March % Mavch
Tax on Wadingprofit e s
Current tax
Current year 53 32
Adjustment to pricryears (5) (8
48 24
Deferred tax
Current year (3} 1
Adjustment to prioryears - -
{3) 11
Tax charge on trading profit 45 35
Tax credit on acquesition and disposal costs
Current year (3) -
Deferred taxcurrent {(13) {15)
Tota tax credit on acquisition and disposal costs (16) {15}
Tax credit on exceptionalcosts
Current year {6) (16)
Adgstiment to pnoryears - -
Total tax credit on exceptional costs (6). (16)
Total tax charge to the consolidated income statement 23 4
Attributable to
Contiwsng operations 12 5
Discontmued operations(note 4) 11 (4)]

The Group's share of profit of associates in the consolidated ncome statement is shown net of tax of £2m (2014/15 — £2m)

The Group’s share of profit of jont ventures m the consolidated income statement 15 shown net of tax of £1m (2014715 - £1m)
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ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Tax contnued
Tax charged to the consolidated income statement in the year continued
The folkowing reconaliation of the tax charge 15 based on a total Group basis (including discontinued operations)

Year endwd Year ended
31 March 3% March
W16 M5
[ [
Trading profit before tax 176 197
Tax on tradwy profit at the standard rate of Corporation Tax i the UK of 20% (2014/15 - 21%) 35 42
Reconcingitems'
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7 2
Non-taxablencome {4) {3)
Impact of overseas tax ratcs and bases 12 1
Prior year adjustment to current and deferred tax (4) (8)
Impact of change in rates (1) 1
Total tax charge on trading profit 45 35
Attributable to
Continuing operations 29 23
Discontinued operations (note 43 16 12
The Group's 2015/16 effective tax rate on trading profit s 25% (2014/15 - 18%)
Your onded Yeax ended
31 March 31 March
R ms
[ [
Profit beforetax 58 65
Tax on profit at the standard rate of Corporation Tax m the UK of 20% (2014115 - 21%) 12 14
Reconcilingiterns.
Trading profit (see above) 10 N
Acquisition and disposal costs and exceptional iterns not deductible for tax purposes 5. 4
Impact of overseas tax rates on adjusted items {2) 52
Impact of change n rates on adjusted tems {2) -
Total tax charged to the consohdated income statement 23 4

The standard rate of Corporation Taxin the UK changed from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 Aprd 2015 Further reductions to the
main rate have been enacted reducing it to 19% from 1 Apnl 2017 and 18% from 1 Apnl 2020 Whilst not et enacted it has been
announced that legistatian n Fnance Bill 2016 will set the rate at 17% from 1 Apnl 2020 UK deferred tax will therefore unwind at
a rate of 19% for penads from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2019

For tax expense refating to discontmued operations, see note 4

Deferred tax balances recognised on the balance sheet

Atat Asat

31 March 31 March

e xt5

m tm

Deferred taxassets 1" 5
Deferred taxhabilities (67) (73)
Net balances (56) (68)

Deferred tax assets of £16m and habiities of £13m were transferred to held for sate dunng the year
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6. Tax continued
Deferred tax - movement of Group balances before offset within countries
asu‘:!w‘?ll‘:: n.l:;fn: Loase
Coodwl o STeRwie ndwaued garriad ot Jorsl
£m £n Em m m £m £m
Net balances at 1 April 2015 7 (15) 24 3 - (3) (68}
Tax (charge)/credit 3 11 4 (1) 1 1) 17
FX adjustments (2) - 1 - - (1 (2)
Transfer to held for sale (note4) 10 - (12) ) - - 3
Net balances as at 31 March 2016 (66) {4} 17 k] 1 (5) {56}
e Ui .
cma-;:l w":%% m&.?&'% m:,?;;::,;‘ ‘f..'.',.i:; s T
Net balances at 1 Apnl 2014 (61) (28) 20 4 2 - {63)
Tax (charge)/credit (8) 15 2 {1} {2) (2) 4
FX adjustments (8) (2) 2 - - Mm (9)
Net balances as at 31 March 2015 an {15) 24 3 - (3) {68)

Deferred tax assets of £14m (2014/15 - £15m) have not been recogrised in respect of certan trading losses because 1t 15 not

probable that future profits will be avatable against which the Group can utihse the benefits The pnncipal movernent in deferred tax
relates 10 the ongoing release of the defesved tax iatwbty on the amortisabon and impairment of intangibles ansing on consobidation,
The brought forward deferred tax hability in relation 1o US goodwill was overstated by £6 4m as at 31 March 2015 This has been
corrected through the tax charge in acquisition and disposal costs m the current penod
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7.Employee information and expense

Payments to defined contnbution schemes are recognised as an expense in the consolidated mcome statement as they fall due
Any difference between the payments and the charge is recogrised as a short-term asset or liability

{3) Analysis of employee costs

Year qnded Yowrarpled

31 Mareh 31 March

2018 015

[ im

Gross salanes {induding bonuses) 579 651

Social secunty costs 47 49

Share-based payrments 8 7

Persion costs 11 9

Gross employee costs 645 6
Cmployee costs capitalised as nternally generated intangible assets (note 12) {45} {41)

Net employee costs 600 675

As at 31 March 2016 there s a net defined benefit hability position of £8m (2014715 — £6m) of which £5m has been transferred to held
for sale

(b) Number of employees analysed by business segment (Including discontinued operations)

Average Veor end

Yaarandsd Yoar anded Asat L5T )]

31 March 31 March 31 March Thareh

g 018 016 wms
Electronc Markets 654 566 689 605
_Post Trade Risk and Information 653 586 671 613
Global Broking 1,643 2057 1,657 1761
Infrastructure 706 719 740 6588
Total 3,656 3,928 3,757 3,667

Company

The Company had no employees dunng the year Dunng the year, no speafic payments were made to the directors far the provision of
services to the Company The dwectors of the Company are also employees of ICAP plc and thew remunerabion costs were bome and
pawd by a fellow subsidiary of 1CAP plc.
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8. Net finance expense
The net finance expense breakdown below is on a Group basis (including discontinued operations)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 Mych
06 my
£m Em
Finance iIncome
Interest recevable and similar mcome
Bank deposits 1 3
1 3
Other finance income
Dnndends recerved on equity mvestments 1 -
Other 1 -
2' -
Total finance income 3 3
Finance costs
Interest payable and similar charges
Bark loans andoverdrafts (20) (24)
Interest payable to affillates (16) (24)
Qther finance costs (2) ()
Total finance costs (38) (49)
Net finance expense {35) (46
Attnbutable tor
Continuing operations {36) {48)
Drscontinued operations{note 4) 1 2
* The revakuation and unwinding of defesmed coneideratk the p 5C f the rcome statement, n e with the Group's presentation of the
meon policyasdisckosed onpage 15
Interest rate nskexposure

The Group has an expasure to fluctuations in mterest rates on both its cash positions and bormowings which it manages through a combination
of pound sterling, euro and yen debt drawn on fixed and floating rate terms. The Group’s objective is to minmise its interest cost and the
impact of interest rate volatility on the Group's consoldated meome statement. In addition to debt the Group s treasury poliaes also permit
the use of dervatives nduding interest rate swaps, interest rate options forward rate agreements and cross curtency swaps to meet these

objectives

3




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. Borrowings

Long-term borrowings are recognised wmitally at farr value, being therr issue proceeds net of ssuance costs ncurred At subsequent
reporting dates long-term borrowings are held at amortsed cost using the effective niterest rate method, with changes tn value
recognised through the consobdated ncome statement issuance costs are recogrised in the consobidated mcome statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effectve mterest rate method

The borrowings note 1s presented on a Group basis, ncluding borrowangs attnbutable toheld for sale habilines
(@) Long-term borrowings

Group Group Company Cormpany

015116 xnans 2015116 2naf5

) m £m tm

As at 1 Apri 252 288 252 288
New long-term borrowings 108 - 108 -
Exchange adjustment 24 (36) 24 (36)
As at 31 March 384 252 384 252
Far value Group Farvalon Group Company Corrpary

s sl mat [ 4 e at =n

21 March 31 March 31 Maxrch 31 March 31 March 1 mach

Analysis of long-term borrowings w6 W s 015 016 s
im om an En £n £

Five-year senior notes repayable 2019 280 276 262 252 276 252
RCF repayable 2016 110 108 - - 108 -
390 384 262 252 384 252

The five-year seniyr notes are presented on the balance sheet at amortised cost, net of fees o enable the Group to manage the
translational exposure which anises as a result of the notes being denominated in euros and to meet its nsk management chjective

of minimusing bath interest cost and the impact of mterest volatdity on its consofidated mcome statement, the Group enterednto
anumber of cross currency swaps to convert its abligations over the bfe of €250m of the notes from euros to pounds sterfing at an
FX rate of 121 These swap from a fixed effective euro mterest rate of 3 20% to a fixed pound sterfing mterest rate of 4 39%. The
swaps have been accounted for as a cash flow hedge and at 31 March 2016 have a far market value of £7m habiity (2014/15 -
F?78m kabidity) and they offset the effect of FX on the notes This resulted n a £1rn charge (2014/15 ~ £nil) being recognised in the
consohdated mcome statement and a £3m credit (2014/15 ~ £rul) in other comprehensive income dunng the year The remaining
€100m of the notes remain n eurcs and have been designated as a net nvestment hedge of the Group s euro-dencminated net assets

The Groups RCF of £425m was drawn by £110m as at 31 March 2016 (2014/15 — undrawn) This s presented on the balance sheet
net of fees of £2m The RCF has a maturty date of March 2018 and ncarporates a $200m swingline faclity of which $75m s
avaiable as a late day fronted selubon The weighted average effective mterest rate for the year was 2 2% (2014/15 - 2 5%)

The Group's bank facidities contain a3 number of customary finanoal and operational covenants The Group and Company
remaned in complance with the terms of all s financial covenants throughout the year ended 31 March 2016

Farr values of the five-year senior notes repayable 2019 have been measured using level 1 farr value measurement inputs,
Al 31 March 2016 the Group had comumitled headsoom under its core credit facilities of £315m (2014/15 — £425m)
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9. Borrowings continued
(a) Long~-term borrowngs continued
Committed facilities

Groap Group Group Group
o al na Ba 1
31 March 31 March I Mxxh 31 parch
s 2018 s nns
o [ 2] 2 [
Dizenn. Undrawn* Brasn Undrawn®
Less than oneyear 62 - - -
Between one and two years 108 315 - 425
Between two and five years 276 - 252 -
446 315 252 425

* Theundrawen batance has been dlassfied based on the maturity date of the fackity
At 31 March 2016, the Group's long-term issuer ratings were Bsa3 (stable) by Moody s and BBB (stable) by Fitch
The five senior notes and the RCF are issued in the Company

(b) Short-term borrowngs

fair vatue Growp Forvahie Group Company Campy

N E=1.% 1.3 =a asat "

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 1 pharch

2018 2016 xS s 018 s

Em En fm £m én Em

Japanese yen loan 62 62 - - 62 -
Owverdrafts 83 83 30 30 2 -
145 145 30 30 64 -

For several years, the Graup has entered nto a senes of yen 10bn term loans with Tokyo Tanshn Co Limited, borrowing each for a term
of up tosxmonths These loans have been refinanced exther immediately on maturity or a few days thereafter with sumular terms

Bank overdrafts are for short- term funding and are repayable on demand and are gener ally repaid withan a very short ime period
£81m of the overdralts arose due to short -term timing differences from unsettled matched pnncipal trades which reversed
subsequently This £81mis presented in held for sale habilities on the balance sheet
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10.Cash

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highty iquid investments which are
subject to insignificant nsk of change i fair value and are readily convertible nto a known amount of cash with less than three
months” matunty,

The Group holds money, and occaswonally financial instruments, on behalf of customers (chent money) in accardance with local
regulatary rules. Since the Group 1s not beneficially enbitled to these amounts, they are exduded frem the consolidated balance
sheet along with the corresponding habilities to customers,

Restnicted funds comprise cash held with a CCP deanng house, or a financial nstitution prowviding ICAP with access to a CCP,
and funds set aside for regulatory purposes, but exduding chent money The funds represent cash for which the Group does
not haveimmediate and drect access or for which requlatory requirements restrict the use of the cash

The cash note s presented on a Group basis, ncluding cash attnbutable to held for sale assets
(a) Recondliation of Group profit before tax to net cash flow from operating activities

Group ﬂ-m
T e
e Em
m {restated)
Praofit before tax from conbinuing operations 6 20
Prafit before tax from discontinued operatons (note 4) 52 45
Operating exceptionalitems 39 73
Share of profit of assocates after tax (1} {3
Share of profit of joint ventures after tax (3) (3)
Amartisation and imparment of intangible assets ansing on consolidation 38 55
Impairment of nvestmentn associates 25 -
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets ansing from development expenditure 36 34
Deprecation and imparment of property and equipment 11 13
Other acquisition and disposal costs 16 2
Share-based payments (trading) 7 7
Net finance expense 36 47
Operating cash flows before movements m working caprtal 262 290
Decrease in trade and other recervables (215) 153
Timeng differences onunsetUled match panapal trades 101 {30}
tncrease in restncted funds (16) {4)
Increase intrade and other payables (31) {115)
Cash generated by operations before exceptional tems 101 294
Operating exceptional items pad (29) (46)
Cash generated by operations 72 248
Interest recewved L 2
interest pad (18) 27)
Tax pad (32) 31)
Cash flow from operatmgactvities 23 192

The movement m trade and ather recevables and trade and cther payables excludes the impact of the gross-up of matched prinapal
trades as perrmitted by IAS7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows' The gross-up has no mmpact on the cash flow or net assets of the Group.

The cash flow movement m trade and other recervables includes the net movement on matched pnncipal transactions and deposits
for securities borvowed/loaned
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10. Cash contirued
(b) Net debt
Net debt compnses total cash less other debt.
Group Grug
f 14 nm
31 March 31 Mach
2016 xns
tm Em
Gross debt (note 9) (529) (282)
Cash ard cash equivalents 486 440
Net debt (43) 158
(©) Total cash
Group Group
asal Mal
3 March 1 March
6 piial ]
fm m
Cash and cash equivalents 486 440
Qvordrafts (83) {30)
Net cash and cash equivalents 403 410
Restricted funds 52 36
Total cash 455 446
(d) Chent money

At 31 March 2016 the Group held dient maney of £2m(2014/15 - £2m) This amount together with the corresponding iabilities to
custamers, s not included in the Group's consolidated balance sheet.

(e) Restricted funds

Restricted funds comprise cash held at a CCP clearing house or a financial nstitution prowiding ICAP with access to a CCP The baance

fluctuates based on busincss events around the year end and decreased during the year by £12mto £24mat 31 March 2016

11. Capltaland Hquidity planning and management

The Group does not seek to take propnetary market risk positions so does not seek to expose iks capstal to market nsk, and it does not
undertake any Torm of matuaty wansformaton so does not seek ikpadity risk, Thus the overall approach to the planning and mansgement
of the Group’s capital and iquidity 1s to ensure the Group s solvency, e its continued ability to conduct business, delver returms to
sharehalders and support growth and strategic mitiatives. Thes risk profile meets the necessary conditions for an investment firm
consolidation waver and the Group continues to benefit from a waver under the CRD IV provisions i force since 1 danuary 2014

35



ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. Capital and liquidity planning and management continued

Liquidity

Group

The Group ncurs exposure to liquidity risk as a result of trades executed as pnncipal and trades executed on exchange an behalf of
chents Since principal trades are executed as matched principal there is no net funding requirement in the normal course of busmess
and the liquicity requirements anse onlyn relation to the margn and collateral requirements of dlearing houses ether directly or via
finanaal nstitutions that provide ICAP wath access to the cleaning houses

tn order to execute and clear matched prinaipal trades m securities the relevant entities need access to dearing and settlement
fadilitres whch requires access to credit during the settlement cycle, so typially only for a one to three-day peniod In order to execute
trades in on-exchange denvatives the entities need access to credit facifities to camy the trades until they are taken up by customers.

In both cases, the Group can be requwred to post collateral or margin to support the credit ines so access to iquidity is nceded to
ensure trades can cantmue to be supported umnterrupted The most significant margin requirements arise in the LS where, as part
of 1ts Global Broking and Electramc Markets businesses, ICAP provides cleanng services Lo customers and s required to deposit
margms with the FICC and NSCC Trading entibies of the Group use locally held inghly ligud assets predomminantly cash held to
meet capital requirements together with commutted and uncommitted credit facdities tomeet ther iguidity requiremants

The Group has a centralised approach to the prowsion of contingency funding for rts trading entities Through the GFC, the board
penodically reviews the iquidity demands of the Group and the financial resources available to meet these demands The GFC ensures
that the Group, i tolality and by subsidiary, has sufficent hquidity avalable in order to prowde constant access even m penods of market
stress, to an appropnate level of cash other forms of marketable secunties and committed funding hnes to enable it to finance its
ongoing operations proposed acquisthions and other reasonable unantkipated events on cost-effectve and attractive terms Therefore,
to meet its iquidity requirements, the Group has maintained minimum core bquidity n the form of centrally held cash and undrawn
debt facilibies, of $250m throughout the year

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had gross debt of £529m (2014/15 — £282m), the matunty analyss of which s set out in note 9,
and cash and cash equivalents of £485m (2014/15 — £440m) {see note 10(¢)). Cash held at clearing houses, or a financia nstitution
providng ICAP with access to a CCP, to which the Group has no immediate access in practice 1s disclosed as restncted funds in the
financial statements{note 10(e))

The Group mvests its cash balances in a range of capital protected instruments indudingmaney market deposits, AAA-rated bquidity
funds and government bonds with the objective of optimising the return while having regard to counterparty credit nsk and iquidity
With the excepbon of some small, local cash management balances, surplus cashr s mvested wath strong institutions which have an
equivalent credit rating of A or better

Company

The Company’s polcy 1s to ensure that it has constant access to an appropnate level of bquidity to enable it to finance its forecast
ongoing operations proposed acquisitions and other reasonable unanticipated events on cost-effective and attractive terms [ the
Company has any cash, it 1s loaned intra-Group for further investment.

Caprtal management

The Group’s capital strategy 1s consistent with that of the ICAP ple Group which s ta maintan an efficient and strong capital base
which maxamses the return to its shareholders, while also maintaining flexibifity and ensuning comphance with supervisory regulatory
requrements The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (note 9) and equity, mcluding share capital (note 24) share prenuum,
other reserves (note 25) and retained earmings

The ICAP plc Group seeks to ensure that it has sufficent regulatory capital at a Group level and in indvidual regudated trading entities

to meet requlatory requirernents. The FCA granted a warver untd Decernber 2017 that allows the ICAP plc Group to disregard the

apphcabon of the consolidated capital requirements of CRD IV and its requirements include the Group being profubited from taking |
propnetary positions The ICAP pic Group contimues to comply with these requirements

The waiver modifies the calculation of the ICAP plc Group regulatory capital position and in effect excludes goodwill adustments |
from the capital computation As a result of the waver the ICAP ple Group's Pillar 1 requlatory capital headroom represents the |
difference between the capital resources of the Company, on a stand-alone basis, and the regulatory capital requirements of the

ICAP plc Group calculated n accordance with the requirements of the wanver, on an aggregate basis Pillar 1 headroom 15 |
approxmately £0 8bn (2014715 — £0 7bn) and s relatvely stable due to the low armount of market and aredit nsk in the ICAP pk !
Group, but may fluctuate due to the timing of dvdends and the distribution of subsidianes’ profits to the Company '

Reguiatory capital at sofo entity level depends on the punsdiction m which it is ncorporated and operates In each case the approach s to
hold an appropriate surphus over the local mnmum The highest caprtal requiremnents asse n the UK whese they are predormunantly dnven
by the fixed overhead requirement, which i based on the fixed costs of the pror year and so does not fluctuate sgnificantly within the year i
As the ICAP pic Group does not take propnetary positions it does not have an nventory of assets so requlatory capital s mostly covered by

cash

ICAP dlso evaluates at a Group and individuat legal entity level the nisks facing the business, to determne whether (ts capital is

sufficient to cover any expected losses. The ICAP plc Group uses a scenano-based model which assesses the economic capital

requared to cover expected nsks The process followed at ICAP plc Group level is corsistent wath the CRD requirement for ICAP s

FCA regulated entities to perform an internal capstal adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) under Pdlar 2 The results for both are

documented updated and approved annually by the board and the UK regulated entity boards respectively The Group overall and
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11. Capital and liquidity planning and management continved
Caprtal management continued

each requlated tradng company comphed wath therr regulatory capital requirements throughout the year

In general, higher levels of market volatility can result in increased demand for the Group's services However as the requlatory
capstal requrement is driven predominantly by the fixed cost base the impact of changes in volsmes on the capital requirement
1 significantly dampened. As such, absent a matenal acquisition, loss of the waiver or a change in the computation basis, existing
capital resources are viewed as sufficient ta aperate and to continue to invest in the development of the Group’s businesses

Followng the disposal of IGBB 1t 1s expected that the Group will not be subject to consolidated requlatory capital requirements,
12. intangible assets arising from development expenditure

Development expenditure on software 1s recognised as an intangible asset in accordance with the provisions of IAS38 ‘Intangible
Assets' Caprtalised expenditure s recognsed initially at cost and s presented subsequently at cost less accumuiated amortisation
and provistons for imparrment. Amortisation of these assets s charged to the consolidated income statement on a strasght-Ene
basis over the expected useful econormic bfe of the asset of three o five years The Group reviews the useful economic lives of
these assets on aregular basis

Development costs are incurred and capitalised when a fina development plan (inchuding the specfics of the assets tobe
developed) is signed off by a commuttee with appropriate delegated authonty (including business management boards) As part
of the approval process, the committee considers the commeraal wabdity and technological feasibility of bninging the asset nto
use When a project s abandoned n the development phase, costs are charged to the mcome statement. Prior to this stage, costs
incurred in the research phase induding undertaking feasibiity studies are recorded in the income statement Once an internally
generated software asset 1s brought mto use, any ongoing related costs are charged to the income statement to the extent that
they relate to ongoing mantenance of the asset Where any costs are identified by an appropriatety authorised management
committee to be an enhancement to the onginal asset, these costs are capitalised and amortised over the rermatning expected

usefu! fife of the asset
The Group has an mternal threshold for capitalisation of £5 000 for ndidual assets and £1.25,000 for software-related projects

The key component of the development costs is compensation of employees Each of the Group’'s businesses and the Group's
mfrastructure area have thetr own dedicated IT project development teams

Amortisation and impairment of mtangible assets ansing from development expendtture 1s charged within operating expenses
Amortisation s charged against assets from the date at which the asset becomes available far use

Group zms;;l: 2014/{:
Cost

As at 1 Aprd 295 266

Addivons™ 54 48

Disposals (58) {32)
Transfer to held for sale (note4) (83) -

Exchange adjustments {1 13

As at 31 March 207 295

Accumulated amortisation and impairment

As at 1 Aprd 180 166

Amortisationcharge for the year 36 34

Imparment n theyear 3 1

Desposals (58) (32)
Trarsfer to held for sale (noted) (47} -

Reclxssificabons 2 -

Exchanqge adjustments 3 1

As at 31 March 19 180
Net book value

As at 31 March 88 115

*  Inchuded wthn addtions are £45m (2014115 - £41m) of employee costs (note 76a)).
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13. Intangible assets arising on consolidation

Since 1 April 2004, ntangible assets ansng on cansolidation inchude goodwll and other separately dentifiable ntangible assets such
as customer relationsheps and customer contracts that arose on business combinations The amortisation and any imparment 1s
included m the consolidated income statement wathin the column ‘Acquisiion and disposal costs’ The Group reviews the performance
of the acquired businesses and reassesses the period over which the acquired mtangible asset 15 Bkely to continue to generate
cash flows that exceed the carmying value

(i) Goodwill

Goodwilt anses on the acquisihon of subsidianies when the aggregate of the far value of the considerstion transferred, the
amount of any non—contraling nterest and the far value of any previously held equity mterest m the acquiree exceeds the amount
of the Identifiable net assets acquired If the amount of the identifiable assets and tiablibes acqured s greater, the difference

s recognised mmediately in the income statement Goodwill1s inially recognised at cast and s subsequently held at cost less
any provizon forimpaiment.

Goodwill anses on the acquisition of mvestments injount verttures when the cost of nvestment exceeds ICAP's share of the
net far value of the jomt venture s identifiable assets and liabiihes Goodwill ansing on the acquiation of jomt ventures s included
m lnvestments in jont ventures and 1s not tested separately for impairment See note 20,

Goodwill anses on the acquisition of interests in associates when the cost of nvestment exceeds ICAP’s share of the net far
value of the assocate’s identifiable assets and liabilities Goodwill anising on the acquisition of associates s nduded in‘Interests
in associates’ and 1s not tested separately for imparment See note 21

Where the Group miakes an acquistion and the balances are reported as provisional at the year end, the Group has a measurement
peniod of up to 12 months from the date of acquesition to finalise the provisional amounts where new mformation becomes
available about facts and crcumstances that existed at the balance sheet date, which could impact the vatue of goodwali

and intangible assets anstng on consalidation The measurement peniod ends as soon as the mformation required is recetved

On disposal of a subsidiary joint venture or assoaate, the attnbutable goodwallis nduded in the calculation of the profit or loss
on disposal, except for goodwill wintten off to reserves prior to 1998, whuch remams ehminated

(i} Separately dentifiable mtengible assets

The Group has recognised separately identified intangible assets on acquisitrions where appropnate These generally mclude
customer contracts and customer relabonships Intangible assets acquired by the Group are stated itially at fair value and are
adjusted subsequently for amortisation and any impairment. Amortisation and impairment of intangibles ansing on consahdation
are recognised in the second column of the consolidated income statement Where ansmparrment has taken place, the asset s
reviewed annually for any reversal of the impairment Any reversals of impairment are credited to the consolidated ncome
statement All separately identifisble ntangible assets have a finite life (exchuding goodwall}

Amortisation of separately dentifiable ntangible assets 15 charged to the consefidated income staternent on a straght-tne basis
over therr estimated useful bves as follows.

Custamer relatzonships 2 - 10years
Customer contracts Penod of contract
Other ntangible assets Penod of contract

A deferred tax hability 15 recognised against the asset for which the amortisation s non-tax deductible The kabifity unwinds
over the same perod as the asset 15 amortised

() Imparment

Goodwill s not amortised but s tested for mparment annually and whenever there s an indicator of mparment Goodwil and
other intangible assets ansing on consolidation are allocated to a cash generating urit (CGU) at acquisition for the purpose of
mparment testing, which 15 undertaken at the lowest level at which goodwill s monttored for mternal management purposes The
idenbfication of CGUs 15 reviewed where there s a significant change to the Group's segmental reportmg structure Impasrment
testng i performed by comparing the recoverable amount of a CGU with its carrying amount The carmying amount of a CGU
15 based on the assets and babulities of each CGU, ncluding attnbutable goodwill. The recoverable amount of a CGU 15 the hugher
of its fair value less cost to sell and its value in use (VIU) VIU s the present value of the expected future cash flows from a CGU
Where the carying value of the asset exceeds its VIU, an mpainment charge 1s recognised immediately in the consolidated ncome
statement, and the asset s stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses For goodwill, impairment charges previously
recogrsed are not reversed and imparred mtangible assets are reviewed annually for reversal of previously recogrised mpaimment

Thus process requires the exercise of significant pdgement by management, if the esbmates made prove to be ncorrect or
performance does not meet expectations which affect the amount and timing of future cash flows, goodwill and intangble
assets may become impared n future periods

38




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. Intangible assets arlsing on consolidation continued
(2) Intangible assets ansing on consolidation

Goodwill Other Tota
£m im im
Cost
As at 1 Aprtl 2015 1,014 620 1,634
Addibans 5 - 5
Transfer to held for sale (78) - {78)
Exchange adjustments 24 - 24
As at 31 March 2016 965 620 1,585
Amortisation and impairment
As at 1 Apnl 2015 151 567 718
Amortisation charge for the year - 38 38
Write off 3 - 3
As at 31 March 2016 154 605 759
Net book value
As at 31 March 2016 811 15 826
Gortatl Other Terd
2 €m Em
Cost
Asat 1 April 2014 966 616 1,582
Transfers to held forsale {13) {2} (15)
£xchange adjustments 61 B 67
As at 31 March 2015 1014 620 1.634
Amortisation andimparment
As at 1 Apnl 2014 151 512 663
Amorsation charge for the year - 55 55
As at 31 March 2015 151 567 718
Net book value
As at 31 March 2015 B63 53 916

The Group recogruses £826m of intangble assets ansing on consolidation, with £811mrelating to goodwill and £15mrelabing

toclher intangible assets The other intangible assets at 31 March 2016 manly represent customer relationships, and have varying

remamning amortisation penods across CGUs

The £826m of ntangible assets exdudes goodwill and other mtangible assets of £78m primarily relating to IGBB winch were reclassified
to hield for sale assets (note 4) There was no impairment recognised in relation 1o 1IGBB  Following the redassification of the shipping
business to held lor sale, an mparment charge of £9m was recogrised

‘the individual CGUs’ goodwill, ather intangible assets ansing on consohdation and net assets were tested for imparment, which
resulted in no impatrment, Duning the year, exiting non-core Electromc Markets businesses resulted n writing off £3m of goodwll,

whnch has been presented as exceptional

Addibons of £5m relate to the acquisibon of Molten Markets lnc. The goodwnll s monitored as part of EBS for imparment review purpases.
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13.Intangihle assets arising on consolldation continued
(b) Impalrment testing of mtangible assets arising on consolidation

As at 31 March 2016

e -
cou Suiness segument e oot ot e
BrokerTec Electroruc Markets 18 145 - 145
EBS Electromic Markets 44 357 5 362
Reset Post Trade Risk and Information 18 146 - 146
TriOpoma Post Trade Risk and Information 7 57 - 57
Traiana Past Trade Risk and Information 13 106 10 116
Total 100 811 15 826
Aaat 3T Mach200%
W ef ot et book
cou Bushness segaene dorer Gooderd e i
Broker Tec Electronic Markets 16 145 - 145
£BS Electronuc Markets 41 345 33 378
Reset Post Trade Risk and Information 15 141 - 14
TriOphma Past Trade Risk and Information 6 52 - 52
Traana Post Trade Risk and information 13 103 19 122
tnformation Post Trade Rask and Infarmation - 3 - 3
Glabal Broking Globai Broking 9 74 1 75
Total 100 863 53 916

imparment testing methodology

The recoverable amount of a CGU 1s determined using ViU calculations, which are based on discounting management’s pre-tax
cash flow projections for the CGU The pre-tax discount rate used 1s the wexghted average cost of capital (WACC) ICAP allocates
to investments in the businasses within whch the CGU operates A long-tenm growth rate estimate s used to extrapolste the
cash flows in perpetuity because of the long-term nature of the businesses m the CGUs

Descount il e Long-term growthsate
Key assumptions m: m : :m: o :
BrokerTec 87 8.7 45 49
EBS a9 89 42 46
Reset 90 90 43 46
TrnOptima 84 85 43 4%
Traiana a5 85 45 51

Discount rates

The Group s pre-tax WACC was 8 6% (2014/15 - B 5%) The Groups WACC s a function of the Group's cost of equity derived using
a Capital Asset Pricing Model {CAPM), and the Group’s cost of debt The cost of equity estimate depended on inputs in the CAPM
reflecting a number of vanables inchuding the nsk-free rate and a prermium toreflect the inherent risk of the business being evaluated
These inputs are based on the market's assessment of economic vanables and management judgement All inputs to the CAPM model
were externally sourced The CGU-specfic WACCs were then denved by adjusting the Group WACC for business-specific nsk factors

Nommal long-term growth rate

The growth rate reflects weighted average real GDP growth and inflation for the countnes withun which the CGUS operate The rates
are based on the International Monetary Fund s medium term forecasts as they are deermed to be reliable estymates of likefy future
trends The rates applied do not exceed the expected growth in the local economy or for businesses which operate on a global scale
the global GOP Given continuing challenges a mil terrmunal growth rate was apphed for Global Broking
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13. Intangible assets arising on consofidstion continued

(b) Imparment testing of intangible assets arising on consobdation continued

Management’s jJudgement in estimating the cash flows of a CGU

The cash flow projections for each CGY are based on plans approved by the board of directors For the 2015/16 annual smpairment
testing of Trasana, management s cash flow projections for the three years ending 31 March 2018 were used For all other CGUs
management cash flow projections for the year ending 31 March 2017 were used

Based on the conditions at the balance sheet date and having assessed sensitvities of the key assumptions, management determined
that a reasonably possible change in any of those key assumptions noted above would not cause an mparrment in any of the CGUs

14, Provisions

A provision 15 recognised where there is a present obligation, erther legal or constructive, as a result of a past event for which it
15 probable there will be a transfer of economic benefits to settle the cbhigation A provision 15 only recognised where a reliable
estimate can be made of the value of the obligation

Restructuneg ooy Other T

5] Em Em Em

As at 1 Aprl 2015 17 15 5 37
Amounts recogmised n the mcome statemment - - 7 7
Settled during theyear (5) (1) - (6)
Exchange adjustments - (1) {1) (2)
Transfer to held for sate (note 4} (3] (11} {2) {15}
As at 31 March 2016 10 2 9 21
As at 1 Apni 2014 - 13 5 18
Amounts recognised n the income statement 17 11 - 28
Settled durrg theyear - {8) - (8)
Redlassified from accruals - - 1 1
Fxchange adustments - {1} (1) (2)
As at 31 March 2015 17 15 5 37

The expected matunty profile of the contractual provisions s disclosed in note 17

Other provisicns of £7m recognrsed dunng the year nclude £6im estimated provisions relating to separation costs to be incurred pnor
to the compleuon of the IGBB disposal Transferred to held for sale includes £2m of restructuring provisions refating to the onerous
lease provisions for Jersey City offices in the US, £2m of other provisions, and £11m of regulatory matters provisions in refation to the
€14 9m fine imposed by the European Commussion in February 2015

Restructuning provisions of £10m at 31 March 2016 relate to onerous lease provisions for the London and Singapore offices
as the Group will continue to retain the leases following the completion of the 1G88 disposal

15. Contingent labilities, contractual commitments and guarantees

The Group's contingent liablibies include possible obligations that anse from past events whose existence will be confirmed only
by the oceurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of ICAP Addiuanally
contingent hiabilities also include present obligations that have ansen from past events but are not recognised because it Is not
probable that settlernent will requrre the outflow of economuc benefits, or because the amount of the obhgations cannot be
reliably measured Contingent fiabilities are not recognised n the financial statements but are disclosed unless the probability of
the outflow of the Group's economic resources s remote Judgements applied i concluding the appropnateness of contingent
habilities disdosure are confirmed after consultation with external counsel
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15. Contingent liabilities, contractual commitments and guarantees continued

Contingent liabllities

The Company and its subsidianies continue to co-operaie with the government agencess in Europe and the US relateng to ther
investigations inta the setting of yen Libor, The Cornpany s no langer a named defendant m the imitab US awl liigation agamst various
yen Libor and curoyen Tibor setting barks. However, the plamtiff in that Itigabon was geven permussion by the court to add ICAP
Europe Limited (IEL} as 2 defendant, and an amendad complaint downg so was filed on 29 February 201 6. IEL intends fo fle a motion
to dismiss the amended complamnt by the 16 May 2016 deadime set by the court for such amotion, On 24 July 2015, a new Btigation
was fited on behalf of two addional plamtiffs in the same court based on sumular allegations, The new bibigation includes clams against
ICAP plc and IEL, both of which have fited motions to dismiss for lack of personal junsdichan and have joined co-defendanis’ motion to
disrmss for Faslure to state aclaim Ord arqument on these motwons is schaduled for 5 May 2016 Plartiffs in the Eunbor cal litgatisn
named ICAP plc and IEL on 13 August 2015 as partes to that pre-existing litgation ICAP plc and IEL heve joned the other defendants
ins fikng mobons Lo dermss for lack of persanal prsdiction ana for falure Lo state a dam. These monons are fully brefed and the parties
are awaning scheduling of oral argument Plainuffs n one of the US dallar Labor cvit itigations sought perrmission to add the Comgany
and |EL as defendants i that case On 5 Apnl 2016, the court denied the plambffs request on the grounds that it lacked persanal
Jursdiction over the Compary and IEL, with the result that neither campany will be added to the hbgation, it % nok prachicable to
predict the yitimate outcome of these maguines or the litigations As a result it 15 not possible to provide an estimate of any potential
financial empact on the Group

ICAP continues to co-operate with inquines by the US government agencics into the settmg of USDISDARIX rates. In 2014, el
lawsuits were filed in the US against USD ISDAFIX set ting banks, where a subsidiary of the Cornpany was ongmally named, but
was subsequently replaced by ICAP Capital Markets LLC, as a defendant Those suits have now been consolidated mto a single
action The Company intends Lo defend these ibgation clawns vigorously It s not practicable Lo predict the ultmate outcome of
these tnquines or the litrgation As a result it 15 not possible to provide an estimate of any potentid financial impact on the Group

On 25 November 2015 a cvil dass action was filed i the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York against a
number of banks, Tradeweb Markets LLC and ICAP Capital Markets LLC (ICM) alleging that the defendants together colluded to prevent
buy-side customers from accessing the mterest rate swaps market on electronic, exchange-ike platforms ICM will be filing a mobion to
dismuss the complant for falure to state a de'm On 18 February 2016, a crvil class action was filed in the United States Distrct Court
for the Northern District of Binois against @ number of banks, Tradeweh Markets LLC and ICM alleging that the defendants boyrotted
and cofusively targeted a senes of new dectromc, exchange-bke trading plaiforms that would have aflowed access to buy-side
customers The action asserts claims of vialation of anistrust laws and unyust snrchment ICAP has not yet been formally served with
the complant In addilion to these two class action Htigations, ICM has been ramed as a defendant in avit hugation filed on 18 Apeil
2016 against a group of banks, as well as Tradeweb, m the United States District Court for the Southern Disinct of New York by the
Tera Exchange and affliated ennitles The suit alleges that the defendants conspired ta boycott ptaintiff's platform o order to undermne
noeased compention m the mterest rate swaps markel The action nidudes clims of violation of antitnust bews, unyust errichment and
tarbous mterference with busness relabons, ICM has not yet been {ormally served wath the complaint, The case has been accepted by
the Southem District of New York as related to the dass action kbgation described above |1 1s rot possible to predict the outcome of
these itgations or to prowde an estimate of any potentsd habiity of fmancial mpact on the Group

From bme to time the Group 1s engaged in itigation in relabion to a vanety of matters, and s also required to provide infarmation
to regulators and other government agencies as part of nformal and formal inquinies or market reviews
Details of regulatory and other matters that have a prowision recogrused for them are detaled n note 14

Contractual commitments

Operating lease commitments

At the end of the financial year, the Group had outstanding commutments for future minimum lease payments under non -cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows (including commitments that will transfer to TP ICAP)

Az B2 A

31 March M Mxch

2018 28

Es m

Within ane year 22 19
Between one and five years 52 60
After fiveyears 11 17
85 96

The commitments include onerous lease provisions but before the estimated recetpt of £2m under a non-canceflable sublease as at
31 March 2016 (2014/15 - £3m) Operating lease commitments relate to the rental of premnises for office space m the UX, US, Israel
and AsiaPaafic.
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15. Contingent labifities, contractual commitments and guarantees continued

Contractual commitrents contmued

Guarantees

In the normal course of busmess certain Group companies enter into guarantees and ndemnities to cover clearng and settlement
arrangements and/or the use of third party serwices/software. It 1 not possible te quanbfy the extent of any potentia iabilities but
there are none currently cxpected to have a matenal impact on the Group s consalidated results or net assets As at 31 March 2016
the Group has given £481m (2014715 - £314m) of guarantees to counterparties.

16. Trads and otherrecelvables

Trade receivables are recagnised wutialy at far value and subsequently renewed For recoverabrdity A provision for mparment
of trade receivables is established when there s obyective svidence that the Group wi not be able to collect all amaunts due
according to the ongmal terms of receivables Significant randa difficuduies of the debtor, probabubty that the deblor will entes
barkruptcy or finandial rearganssation, and default or definquency in payments, are considered indicatars that the trade recewable
& wripaired, The amount of the provision 15 the difference between the asset’s carryng amount and the present value of the
furture cash flows. The camying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amnount of
the loss & recogrsed in the consobdated income statement within ‘operating expenses’, When a trade recenvable s determined
to be uncollectable, it is written off aganst the allowance account For trade recenvables. Subsequrent recovenas of amounts
previously watten off are aredrted against Operating expenses’ in the consolidated ncome statement

Loans and recervables are non-denvative financial instruments which have a fixed or deternmnable value, They are recognised
at cost, less any provisions for mpairment in therr value

Far value through profit or loss assets are designated as such where they meet the conditions of 1AS39 ‘Financrl instruments
Recognition and Measurement’ They are recognsed rutially at far value and any subsequent changes in fair valve are recogmsed
directly i the consolidated ncome statement These assets are usually held for short-term gain, or are financial nstruments not
desgrated as hedges The accounting policy for denvative financial nstruments s ncluded m note 26

Matched prnaipal transactions are those where the Group acts i a non-adwvisory capacity as principal n the commitment

to purchase and self secunties and other finance! Instruments through twe or more transactions between qur customers, Such
trades have no contractual settiement date and are complete only when all sides of the transaction are setiled, and therefore an
aged analysss of matched prinapal trade receivables 15 not appropriate. Substantially a¥matched principal recevables and payables
settie within a short penod of Lime, usually withen three days of the trade date. All amounts due to and payable by counterparues
n respact of matched prnespal nsness are shown grass as matched prinopal trade recenables and matched principal trade payables
(note 1B), except wheve 2 netting agreement, which s legally enforceable at all mes, exists and the asset and Batdity are evthes
settled net or smultanesusly (f ary Lamatched trades remain cutstanding, the asset or liabdity 15 held within matched prinapal trade
receivables or payables as appropriate and farr valued through the conschdated ncome siatement until the trada 15 completed

The Group acts as an mtermediary between our customers for coliateralsed stock lending transactions, Such trades are complete
only when both the collateral and stock for each side of the transaction are retumed The gross amounts of collateral due to and
recevable aredisclosed in the balance sheet as deposits patd for secunties borrowed and deposits receved for secunities loaned
{note 17)

Financial mstruments not held at farr value are snpared where there 15 objective evidence that the value may be impaired The
amount of the mparment 15 caladated as the difference between the carmying vatue and the present value of any expected future
cash flows, with any impairment being recogresed n the consolidated income statement Subsequent recovery of amounts previously
impaired are credited to the consolidated incame statement
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16. Trade and other recelvables continued

Grong Gy Compaery Company
asn mat ot F-T )
S1March 3t trch 31 march 11 trch
2016 ans 016 b3
Em im £ i3

Non-current recervables
Deposits 3 2 - -
Other recevables 6 3 - -
9 5 - -

Currentreceivables

Maiched principal trade receivables 59,322 23,308 - -
Deposits paid for secunties borrowed - 758 - -
Other trade recevables 69 185 - -
Imparrment of other trade recevables Q) (3 - -
Amaunts owed by affibates 527 223 356 3n
Amounts owed by subsidianies - - 200 48
Amounts owed by assoaates - 3 - -
Amounts owed by otherrelated parties 1 1 - -
lax recewvable - - 20 24
Dernvative financialinstruments 3 7 3 7
Other recervables 55 53 12 8
Prepayments 9 37 - 3
59,985 24572 591 401

Current trade recevables of £20,727m, not included above have been reclassified to held for sale (notc 4) The ncrease in trade
receivables and payables is principally due to a change in dearing arrangements for certain US Ireasunes within BrokerTec.

(a) Credit nsk management

The Group s exposed to credit sk in the event of non-perfarmance by counterparttes in respect of its name gve-up, matched
principal, exchange-traded and corporate treasury operations The Group does not bear any significant concentration nsk to either
counterparts or markets

The credit nsk i respect of name give-up and post trade rsk and mformation services businesses is imited to the collection of
outstanding commission and transaction fees and thus s managed proactively by the Group's accounts recenvable function with
oversight from the independent credit nsk function

The matched prncipal business nvolves the Group acting as a counterparty on trades which are undertaken on a dehvery versus
payment basis The Group manages its credit nsk tn these transactions through appropriate pohaes and procedures i order to
mitigate this nsk ircduding stringent on -boarding requirements, setting appropnate credit imits for all counterparts whuch are closely
momitored by the regional credit sk teams to restnict any potental foss through counterparty default. A significant portion of the Group's
counterparty exposure at any given pomt throughout the year 15 to mvestment grade counterparts {rated BBB- /Baa3 or above).

The Group s potential stressed counterparty credit risk calculated in the ICAAP 1s less than 5% of the Group s total capital resources

The credit nsk on core cash cash equivalents and denvative financal nstruments 1s monttored on a daily bass. All linancal nstitubons

that are transacted with for corporate purposes are approved by the Group Finance Committee and mternal firnits are assigned to each

oae based on a gombination of factors nchuding external credit catings The mayonity of cash and cash equivalents s deposited with
investment grade rated financialinstitutions

Company
The Company is exposed to credit nsk i the event of non-perfarmance by counterparties This risk 18 considered mimmal as all
counterparties are Group compantes and the risk of non-payment is viewed as low

(b) impairment of other tradereceivables

Other trade recervables represent amounts receivable in respect of agency business andinformation services All recervables are
individually assessed for imparrment at the reparting date. Managerment judgerment is applied in determuing whether there s
objectave evidence that aloss event has occurred and, if 50, the measurement of the impalment alldwance I determining whethes
there 1s objectrve evidence that a loss event has occurred judgement is exeraisedin evaluating all relevant information on indicators
of impawment, which 15 not restricted to the consideration of whether payments are contractually past due but ineludes broader
congideration of factors indicating detenoration in the financial conditran and cutiook of customers affecting therr abiity to pay

For those recervables whera abjective evidence of impairment exsts, management determines the sze of the allowance required
based on arange of factars including probability of default and f defaulted, expectation of recovery 1 inasubsequent penod, the
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16. Trade and other recelvables conbinued

(b) imparment of other trade recefvables continued

amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be refated objectively toan event occurnng after the imparment
wasfecogniser) the previcusly recogrised impairrment 10ss 1 reversed and the reversa) 15 recognised in the income statement

As at 31 March 2018 £2m of other trade receivables reman mpared (2014/15 — £3m), which indudes £1m dassified as held
for sale There have been no new impairments durng the year

Past due but notl impawed trade and other recervables are those i respect of which Lhe debtor has faled to make a payment or

a partial payment in accordance with the contractual terms of the invoice but there s no major concern over the credit worthiness
of the counterparty therefore they are not impaired In the prior reporting penods receivables past a normal settlement date were
considered past due and were reported on that basis As at 31 March 2016 the followng other trade recevables were past due but
notimparred

A3t Ay

31 March 31 MEth

Group 206 ms
£m £m

Less than 30 daysoverdue 90 107
Over 30 days but less than 90 days overdue 42 51
Over 90 days but less than 180 days overdue 11 11
Over 180 days overdue 15 13
158 182

Other trade recervables past due but not imparred of £158mindude £90m classified as held for sale

() Offsetting financial assets and financial liatulities

The Group operates under a cleanng arrangement for certain US matched pnncipal transactions on a fully disclosed cleaning basis,
which prawides the Group with the legally enforceable nght to set off the recognised amounts and settle on a net basis As such,
certain matched prnapal trade recevables and payabtes (note 18) are recorded ona net basis Absent the change n the cleaning
arrangements for certain US Ireasunes within BrokerTec durtng the year, the gross amounts netted 1n the year would have been
£59 322m higher

Asml A X

31 sdarch 31 March

Group ans mE
£m (]

Grossrecognised receivable 172,779 171599
Grossrecognised payable 171,807 171,182
Gross amounts that are netted 171,807 171182
Gross amounts subject to netting arrangements Lhat are not offset 972 A7
Deposit secunties paid (collateral) 14 15

The above disdosure 15 on a Group basis and thereforeincludes held for sale

{d) Trade receivables by currency
The table below shaws the concentration of the Group's trade recevables by currency (including those classified as held for sale}

Trade recervables as at 31 March 2016

Pound " Other
Group ity it e T -
Matched pnincipal trade recevables 2,591 69,489 5,778 572 495 78,925
Deposits pawd for securities borrowed 71 917 - - - 988
Other trade recevables {net) 3 97 20 2 8 158
2,693 70,503 5,798 574 503 80,071
Traderecenvables as at 31 March 2015
Pourd Cekzr
stoing ot
Group m ped a:::- :'.r.‘n aumeedes T?,:'
Matched principal trade recesvables 4,533 13,474 3,120 3156 1825 23308
Deposits paid for securibies borrowed - 758 - - - 758
Other trade recenvables (net) 32 119 19 3 9 182
4565 14 35t 3139 359 1,834 24 248
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17. Trade and other payables

Accounts payable are recognised initially at farr vatue based on the amounts exchanged and subsequently held at amortised cost.
The accounting pohaes far matched poncipal transactions and collateralised stock lending are nduded wittun the trade and ather

receivables note (note 16)

Details of the accounting policy relating to derivative financial instruments is included m note 26

Group Group Company Corrpany
n l\:r; n M.:-:‘ 31 n:r; ki N:':n
2016 s 2016 s
En £m [ im
Currentpayables
Matched pnncipal trade payables 59,322 23 266 - -
Deposits recenved for secunties loaned - 758 - -
Other trade payables 10 1 - -
Amounts owed to affiates 21 474 332 333
Amounts owedto subssdianes - - 868 2,045
Amounts owed Lojoint ventures - 2 - -
Amounts owed to associates - - -
Amounts owed to related parties 1 1 - -
Denvative finanaalinstruments 12 10 12 10
Accruals 87 214 12 3]
Other tax and social secunty 6 10 - -
Deferredincome 16 21 - -
Other payables 3 13 - -
Contingent deferred consideration 1 3 - -
Deferred consderation - 1 - -~
60,182 24,784 1,224 2394
Current trade payables of £20.668m, not included above, have been reclassified to held for sale (note 4)
Group Group Company Corepany
n :af::th n Dr;:h n M:::: n M:;l
2016 oy w8 s
£m £m £m [
Non-current payabies
Accruals - 1 - -
Contingent deferred consideration 3 3 -
Dernvatwve financialinstruments 8 30 30
Other payables - 1 - -
Deferredincome 1 3 - -
Total 12 36 8 30

As at 31 March 201 6 the fair value of trade and other payables i not matenally different from therr book values

Non-current trade payables of £3m, not included above, have been reclassified to held for sale (note 4)
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17 Trade and otherpayables continued
(a) Maturity of trade and other payables and provisions

The table below shows the matunty profile of the Group’s financal habrlities inchuded withun trade and other payables {exchuding those

classified as held for sale) based on the contractual amount payable on the date of repayment

Maturity of trade and other payables and provisions as at 31 March 2016

Lews than Thres months ane bo Gredter than
th ath to oney Mive yoars five yaars Tor
[ <] km 2] im
Matched principal trade payables 59,322 - - - 58,322
Other trade payables 10 - - - 10
Denvative financialtnstruments 4 8 8 - 20
Amounts owed to affilates 23! - - - 721
Amounts owedto assoqates 4 - - - 4
Amounts owed to related partes 1 - - - 1
Other payables 3 - - - 3
Contingent deferred consideration - 1 3 - 4
Accruals 57 30 - - 87
60,122 319 11 - 60,172
Maturity of trade and other payables and provisions as at 31 March 2015
bsstimn Threemorghe, oty Grutergan
three months to oneyesr five years fveyeas Tl
Em tm Lin im b
Matched principal trade payables 73266 - - - 23 266
Deposits recerved for secuntres loaned 758 - - - 758
Other trade payables 11 - - - 1
Denvatve financalinstruments 10 - 30 - 40
Amounts owed to afftiates 474 - 700 - 1174
Amounts owed to yoint ventures 2 - - - 2
Amounts owed to related partes 1 - - - 1
Other payables 10 3 1 - 14
Contingent deferredconsderation 2 1 1 - 4
Deferred consideration - 1 - R 1
Provisions 2 16 19 - 37
Accruals 56 158 i - 21%
24592 179 752 - 25,523

The gross amounts payable have been disclosed above, rather than their net present value. Based on their short-term nature there
15 no materal difference between the net present vatue and gross amount of the balances disclosed above

Company
The following table shows the matunty of the Company’s iabfities.

As ot 21 March 2016

A3 ol 31 March 2015

Lass Thares Ons to Lrss than Thres
than thres raonths to five Totsl three otk to Onn to

months one year mamtin o year five years Toad
[+ En [ m Em Emy foy £m
Borrowings - 64 384 448 - - 252 252
Acguals - 12 - 12 - 2] - 6
Denvative finanaal mstruments 4 8 8 20 10 - 30 40
Amounts owed by Group companies 1,200 - 580 1,780 2,378 - 6399 3077
Total 1,204 B4 972 2,260 2,388 6 a1 3,375
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18. Financial assets and Gabilities
(a) Financal assets

The carrying value less mparment of current trade recewvables and payables s assumed to appraximate therr fair values dua to therr

short-term nature

As at 31 March 2016 and 2013, the fair values of financial assets are not matenaly different from their book values

The table below cxcludes financial assets classified as held for sale
Classification of financial assets as at 31 March 2016

Hackying Avallabde - Loans and

Festruments Forssls rcrables fatad
[ £m tm em
Cash and casheguivalents - - 156 156
Restricted funds - - 24 24
Avallable-for-sale investments - L] - 9
Amounts owed by affillates - - 527 527
Matched principal trade recevables ~ - 59,322 59,322
Other trade recevables {net) - - 68 68
Amounts owed from other related partes - - 1 "
Dervatve financialinstruments 3 - - 3
Other recevables - - 62 62
3 80,160 60,172

Cassification of financial assets as at 31 March 2015

Hedging Movadable~ Loam and

vetranTita for-sate recewatiey Fukat
tm £m Em £m
Cash and cashequivalents - - 440 440
Restncted fonds - - 36 36
Avalable-for-sale nvestments - 15 - 15
Matched principd trade recevables - - 23,308 23308
Deposits paid for secunities borrowed - - 758 758
Other trade recevables {nct) - - 182 182
Amounts owed by affilates - - 293 293
Amounts owed by associates - - 3 3
Amounts owed from other refated parties - - 1 1
Denvatve fmanaalinstruments 7 - - 7
Other receivables - - 56 56
7 15 25,077 25,099
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18, Financlal assets and Babilitlescontinued
(a) Financal assets contmued

Finanaial assets can be recanciled to the balance sheet as follows s o
2016 205
im <]
Current, recervables(nate 16} 59,985 24,572
Non-current recesvables 9 S
Non-current amounts owed by affilates - 70
Available-for-sde financial investments (note 22) 9 15
Cash and cash equivalents including restncted funds 180 476
Excluded
Non-finanaal other recervables (2) (2)
Prepayments (9} {37)
60,172 25,099

Prepayments and certatnitems mduded wathin other recervables are not defined as financial assets under IAS39

(b) Finandial Giailities

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the faw values of financial babilities are not materally different from their book values except for the

far value of the retall bond repayable in 2018 and five-year semor notes repayable i 2019 (note 9)
Classificatron of financial fabifities

A 2% 31 March 7016 23931 Marh 2015
O e e e
£m £ Em Em tm en
Matched pancipal trade payables - 59,322 59,322 - 23266 23266
Deposits recerved for securities loaned - - - - 758 758
Cther tradepayables - 10 10 - 1 11
Denvative financalinstruments 20 - 20 40 - 40
Armounts owed to affihates - 1,301 1,301 - 1,174 1174
Armounts owed tojont ventures - - - - 2 2
Amounts owedto associates - 4 4 - - -
Amounts owed to related parties - 1 1 - 1 1
Other payables - 3 3 - 14 14
Contingent deferred conaideration - 4 4 - 4 4
Deferred consxlerabon - - - - 1 1
Accruals - 87 87 - 21% 215
Borrgwings and overdrafts - 448 448 - 282 282
Pravisions - 21 21 - 32 32
20 61,201 61,221 40 25,760 25800
Provimions of £11m, not disclosed above, have been redlassified to held for sale (note 4)
Financial babilriies can be reconciled to the balance sheet as follows Asat A
3T March 3 sarch
2015 ms
i m
Current payables 60,183 24,784
Non-current payables 12 36
Borrowings and overdrafts (note 10) 448 282
Non-current amounts owed Lo affihates 580 700
Prowisions (note 14)* 21 32
Excluded
Tax and socal secunty (6) (o)
Deferredincome 1" (24)
61,221 25,800

*  Exchudes ron-contractual provisons.
Taxes payable deferred income and certan provisions are not classified as financial kabilities under 1AS39
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18. FAnanclal assots and Rabilitiescontinued

(b) Financial fiabilities contmued

Company
Fmanaal assets and fiabiities

The Company's financial assets and liabdities are analysed as below

As at 31 March 2016

AS ot 31 March 2015

Dex vative Avaiable Loans and Available tomns and
im for sae  recebables Yatal Derlvative for gatn fosthabies Tatd
im Em im im Em Em £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equvalents - 11 11 - - 43 43
Avarlable for sale investments - - 2 - - - -
Amounts owed by Group companes - - 356 356 - - 359 359
Denvative financial instruments 3 - - 3 7 - - 7
Other recevables - - 32 32 - - 35 35
Totdl 3 2 399 404 7 - 437 444
As &t 3 March 2016 Asat 31 March 2015

Derivativa lmn:: foesd Derbvatres hm:::: Yot
£n im ()] fm Em im

Financial liabiities
Borrowngs - 448 448 - 252 252
Accruals - 12 12 - 6 6
Dernvabive financial mstruments 20 - 20 40 - 40
Amounts owed to Group comparies - 1,780 1,780 - 3,077 3077
20 2,240 2,260 40 3,335 3,375

Group tax receivable 15 not considered to be a financial asset

The far value of the financial assets and habilities 1s not matenally different from ther book values
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19. Principal subsidiaries

An entity s regarded as a subsidiary f the Company has control aver its strategic, operating and financiat poliaes and intends
to hold the mvestment on a long-term basis for the purpose of secunng a contribution to the Group s actmvities

The Company recognises nvestrnents m subsidianes mitally at far value, and subsequent changes in vatue as a result of mpawrment

arerecogrused in the ncome statement

As xt Asc
31 March JIrrmch
018 18
£m [
As at 1 April 4,937 3682
Addions 7 1972
Return of capital in relatson to restructuning (69) (699)
Impairment {469) (18)
As at 31 March 4,406 4937
Additons relate to the re-alignment of the legal entity structure which involved a transfer of investrments within the IGHP
group Ths resulted in a fair value uplift of £7m (2014/15 ~ £1 97.2m) and return of capatal in relation to restructuring of
£69m (2014/15 - £699m) n IGHP’s overall mvestment mn subsidianes. During the year, an impairment charge of £469m
(2014/15 - £18m) was recorded in the Company s Income statement These impawments mainly refate to the restructunng
of the Group’s subsidianes in ine wath 1ts operating segments
Al of the Company's other subsidianies are mdirectly owned The exemption under section 410 of the Companes Act 2006
to show anly the principal subsidianes has ceased for accounts signed on or after 1 kdy 2095 A complete bist of subsidianes
jont ventures and associates is given in note 30 The Company’s pnnapal subsidiaries ther country of ncorporation and the
Group's ownership are listed below
wowid
England EBS Dealing Resources International Limited 100
ICAP EnergyLimited* 100
ICAP EuropeLimuited” 100
ICAP Global Denvatives Limited™ 100
ICAP Management Services Limited™* 100
ICAP Securibes Limsted* 100
1Swap Limited* 501
lapan ICAP Totan Secunbes Co Ltd* 60
Singapare Reset PrivateLusmuted 100
Sweden TnOptima AB 100
Switzerlang EBS Service Company Limited 100
United States BrokerTec Amernicas LLC 100
EBS Dealing Resourcesinc 100
ICAP Capital MarketsLLC 100
ICAP CorporatesLLC® 100
ICAP Energy LLC* 100
ICAP Secunties USALLC* 100
ICAP Serwices North Amenca LLC* 100
Traana Inc 867

* These subsicaries are inchuded withen discontinued operations.
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19. Principal subsidlaries continued

The percentage held represents the percentage of ssued ordinary share capital held (al classes) and also represents Lhe voling
nghts of the Comparny The Group has an economic interest of 40 2% i 1Swap Limited but the nvestment 1s classed as a
subsidrary because the Group 1s the largest single shareholder (next largest econonmic nterest 1s 13 3%) The Group also employs

the key management personnel of iSwap Limited

All companics operate in therr country of ncorporation ICAP Energy Limited 1CAP Europe Limited, ICAP Secunties Lmited, EBS
Dealing Resources lnternationat Limited, ICAP Secunties USA LLC, ICAP Corporates | 1 C and BrokerTec Americas LLC also

operate [rom branches outside the countres of incorporation

All subsidiaries are involved in Electronic Markets Post Trade Risk and Information or Global Broking actvities.

UK subsicianes exemnpt from audit requirements

The following UK subsidianes of the Company have taken advantage of the exempton allowed from the requirements for the /
audit of ther indmdual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2016 under section 479A to section 479C of the Companies
Act 2006 The exemption is an the basis of the Company providing a guarantee of those companies habilities as at 31 March

2016

Usble

0 & 31 Marh 2015

wdo govantee or as.

quaranteed

Regrstored menber £

ICAP Shipping International Lirited 06173794 63 028140 7

ICAP Sheppnng Lirnited 02062368 20032 656
ICAP Shipping Tankers Limited 02774629 3086579
Midhurst Chartering Limited 07817554 347517
Capital Shupbrokers LLP QC318682 172,734
ICAP US Investment Company 06524710 10
Godsedl Astley & Pearce (Holdings) Urited 01438662 -

“Total liabilitres guaranteed of £86 667 636 ncludes £85,573,228 due to other subsidianes of ICAP pic (the ultmate parent of
IGHP and s subsidianes}) and £.1,094 408 due to third parties outside the ICAP plc Group (ICAP pic and its subsidianies) The
above liabitties guaranteed are mcluded in the quarantees made by the Company as disclosed i note 15
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20. Investment in joint ventures

Investments in joint ventures are recogrised using the equity method Under this method, suchinvestments are nitially stated at
cost, nduding attnbutable goodwall, and are adusted thereafter for the post acquisiion change i the Group's share of net assets

Investments tn jomnt ventures are reviewed for indicators of impairment under 1AS39 ‘Finanaal Instruments. Recogrition and
Measurement’ Whenever application of LAS39 indicates that an investment may be impaired, the camying amount of the
nvestment, ncluding attnbuted goodwall 1s tested for impairment as a single asset under 1AS26, by comparing the carrying
amount with its recoverable amount (the tugher of ViU and far value less costs to sale)

The Group adopted IFRS11 Jomt Arrangements” and IAS 28 ‘Investments m Assoaiates and Joint Ventures' for the financial year
beginrung 9 April 2014 Previowsly, the Group proportionally consolidated the joint ventures’ results and position of its jomt ventures
under [A531 The Group detenmned that as a result of the adoptions of IFRS11 and IAS28 the jont ventures’ results will not be
proportionatety consatdated in the Group financial statements but will be treated under the equity accountmg method

Movements in investments in joint ventures

2015/16 45
Em £m
As at 1 Apri 8 6
Share of profit for the year -3 3
Drndendsrecerved - m
Exchange adjustments () -
Transfer to held for sae (note4) (9) -
As at 31 March 1 8
Summary financtal information of joint ventures
The Group's share of joint ventures assets, liablitres and profit s given below
L1 A a2
31 March I March
) ams
2 £m
Assels 19 11
Liabihties 5 (3)
Yaar stvdid Yoar efedee)
31 Mawch 31 March
a8 ™5
m [
Revenue 16 9
Operaling expenses (12} {5)
Profit before tax 4 4
T (1) (1)
Share of profit of joint ventures after tax 3 3
Attributable to
Contiwang operations - -
Discontmuedoperations 3 3
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20. Investment in joint venturescontinued
Jomt ventures - Group
The Group's joint ventures and ther country of mcorporation are bisted below

Shkeld  Propal actnty
Mexico SIFICAP SA deCV* 500 Broking
tnited States TFS-ICAPLLC 230 Broking
* This joint venture o excheded 1n held for sale sssets,

Altjoint ventures have a 31 December year end The difference in the jomt ventures' year ends to the Group s year end 1s not
considered to have a matenal impact on thew results

21. Investment in associates

tvestments in assoaates are recognised using the equity method Under this method, such mvestments are rutially stated at cost,
inchuding attributable goodwill, and are adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of net assets

Investments in assoqates are reviewed for indicators of impatnment under (AS39 ‘Financial Instruments Recagnition and
Measurement” Whenever application of IAS39 indicates that an mvestment may be imparred, the carrying amount of the
nvestment, including attributed goadwill Is tested for impatrment as a single asset under AS36, by compartng the carrying
amount with its recoverable amount (fugher of VIU and farr value less costs to sell).

Movements In nterests in associates

201518 21405
£m Em
As at 1 April 61 58
Additions 37 1
Transfer from avalable-for-sale mvestment 1 -
Share of profit for the year 1 3
Dridends recerved (5) (4
Other movements 171 -
Impairment (25) {B)
Ixchange adjustments 3 1
Transfer to held for sale (note 4) (39) -
As at 31 March 45 61
Additions

Bunng the year the Group nvested £17mn acquinng new assoaates and mereasing Its stake m existing associates New PTRI
investments include £7m m Abide Financial Limited and £7m in AcadiaSoft, Inc. The Group also nvested £3m to mcrease its stake
i Puco Technology Limited, an existing PTRI assodate. The remaining additions are mainty drven by the recogmition of a £20m
mvestment in Howe Robinson Partners Pre Ltd representing farr value of a 35% stake on 1 Apnl 2015

Impairment charges
Dunng the year following the identification of impairment indicators under IAS39 ympairment reviews were performed i our
nvestrnents, resulong inmpairment charges of £10mmn BSN Holdngs Limuted, £14mn Howe Robimnson Partners Pte Ltd

and £1mmn Capital Shipbrokers Limited

Other

Other includes £11mmvestment in ENSC LP on1 Octaber 2014 The Group's investment in assooates at 31 March 2015 did not
mndude the additional nvestment wath an equal and oppasite error in the Group’s translation reserve at 31 March 2015 This has
been corrected in the current periad
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21. Investment in assoclates contrued
Summary financial information for associates
I he Group's share of associates’ assets (excluding goodwill), kabilities and profit s given below

Asmt Asat

31 tharch J1Mach

né a5

£n &

Assets 61 60
Ligbifities (15) (25)
Your ended Yearended

1 Mareh 31 March

P 015

im Em

Revenue 63 38
Operating expenses (60} (33)
Profit before tax 3 5
Tax (2) (2)
Share of profit of associates after tax 1 3

Attributable to-

Continuing operations {3) (2)
Driscontinuedoperations 4 5

The Group's associates and their country of incorporation are listed below

Xhedd  Prncpal aciwity

England BSN Capital Partnersurmited 251 Brolang
Hong Kong Capital Shupbrokers Limited 450 Brokng
Japan Totan ICAP Co, Ltd* 400 Broking

Central Totan Secunties Co, Lig® 200 Brokng
Jersey ENSOLP 420 PTR
Malaysia Amanah Butler Malaysia Sdn Bhd* 21 Broking
Span Corretaje e Informacdn Monetana y de Dvisas SA” 215 Broking
Singapore Howe Robinson Partners Pte t.id 350 Broking
United States CLS Aggregation Seraces{LC 425 FTRI

Fust Brokers Secunties LLC* 400 Brakang

OpenGamma Inc 154 PTR

* These asodates are incuded m held for sale assets.

All share holdings are in ardinary shares except for the investment in Capital Shipbrokers Limited which 1s a combinanian of voting and
ron-voting shares

BSN Capital Partners imted CLS Aggregation Services LLC and OpenGamma Inc have 31 December year ends The difference in
these assocates’ year ends to the Group's year end is not considered to have a matenal impact on therr results All other assocates have
a 31 Marchyear end

22. Available-for-sale mvestments

Avallable-for-sale financial assets are debt and equity non-denvative financial assets and are intially recogrised at fair value

Available-for-sale nvestments in equity assets that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose far value
cannot be reliably measured, are subsequently recorded at cost less mpaiment If there s objectve evidence that an mmpairment
loss has been incurred on such financal assets, the amount of the mparment loss s measured as the difference between the
carnying amount of the finanaal asset and the present value of estmated future cash flows discounted at the current market

rate of retun for a similar financial asset

All other available-for-sale financial assets are far vaued subsequently at each penod end Any subsequent changes i far value
are recogrised directly in other comprehensive mcome When a decline in the farr value of an available-for-sale finanaal asset
has been recogrised in other comprehensive mcome and there 1s objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative
unreahsed boss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income i transferred to the consoldated ncome statement
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22. Avallable-for-sale investments continued

Impatrment losses recogrised in the consolidated incorne statement for an nvestment m an avalable-for-sale equity Instrument
are not reversed through the consclidated ncorne statement Ovidends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised
in the consofidated income statement when the nght 1o recerve payment is established When an available -for-sale finanual asset
15 derecognised, any cumulative unreahised gain or loss recogrused previously in other comprehensive income s transferred to the
consolidated ncormestatement

These assets are generally expected to be held for the fong term and are icluded in non-current assets Assets such as shares or
seats mn exchanges, cash-related mstruments, and long-term equity tvestments that do not qualfy as associates or jont ventures,
are classified as available-for-sae.

2075716 209415
£ e
As at 1 Aprd 15 16
Additions 5 -
Disposals - (2)
Imparrment - 1)
Revaluabion in the year recogrwsed m other comprehensive mcome - 1
Trarsfer toassociates (1 -
Exchange adjustments 1 1
Trarwfer to held for sale (noted) {11) -
As at 31 March G 15

Additions of £Smmdude £2 5m of additional nvestment in DTCC common stock, £E1minvestment n Coud9 Technologees LLC,
£0.8m additional nvestment n Exotix Partners LLP and £0 7mnvestment in Digital Asset Holdings LL.C

The disciosure below does not include avadable-for-sale nvestments which have been transferred to hedd for sale (note 4)

Yaor ended Your anded
31 March M March
2078 s
L] [1a]
Non-current available -for-salenvestments
Held at farvalue 1 1
Held at cost less imparment a 14
Total 9 15
The farr value of £1m (2014/15 - £1m) was determmned using Jevel 1 nputs being the quoted prices of the equily mstruments
Yearanded Year anded
37 My It Mach
w6 M5
om £m
Listed secunties
Equittes listed m the US 1 1
Total bsted secunities 1 1
Unlisted securities
Equitynvestments 4 14
Other 4
Total unbsted secunties 8 14
Totalavalable- for -salemnvestments 9 15
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22. Available-for-sale investments continued
Available-for -sale Investments are denormnated in the follewing currencies

found Otha

Datar Total
Group - a- e o o
As at 31 March 2016 7 2 - - - g
As at 31 March 2015 7 2 - 4 2 15

23.Property and equipment

Property and equipment & recognised nitially at cost mdudmg the onginal purchase price of the asset and the costs attnbutable

to bninging the asset mtots mtended use Property and equipment is subsequently presented at mitial cost less accumulated
depreciation and any provisions for imparment in its value It 1s depreaiated on a straight-fine basis over its expected useful
economic life as follows

Short leaseholdproperty improvernents Penod oflease

Furniture fixtures and equipment 3 - Syears

The Group reviews Its deprecration rates regularly to take account of any changes in arcumstances These rates are deterrnied

on consideration of factors such as the expected rate of technological development and anticipated usage levels

When a leasehold property becomes surplus to the Group s foreseeable business requimerments, a provision 15 made on a discounted
basis for the expected future net cost of the property

201516 201445
e ) pre
e
Group v ww’: praent. fol npt:mnw;t: sampment Tad
Cost
As 3t 1 April 40 74 4 41 g3 134
Additions 2 15 17 - 8 8
Drsposals (§}] (20) (21) {6} (33) (39)
Redassification - - - 3 (3) -
Exchange adjustments 1 3 4 2 9 it
Transfer to held for sale {note4) {41) {21) (62) - - -
As at 31 March 1 S1 52 40 74 114
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 Apri 28 54 B2 29 69 98
Charge for the year 3 8 11 3 10 13
Disposals (1) (20) (21) (6} {33) (39)
Reclassifications - (2) (2) - - -
Exchange adjustments 2 2 4 2 8 10
Transfer to held for sale (note 4) (32) {20) {(52) - - -
As at 31 March - 22 22 28 54 B2
Net book value
As at 31 March 1 29 30 12 20 32

Addisons dunng the yvear mdude assets under construction that are expected to become avatatle for use of £5m (2014715 - E4my)
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24, Share capital

Ordinary shares are recognised in equity as share capital at their norminal value The difference between consideration received
and the nomunal value 15 recogrused mn the share premium account.

(a) Issued share capital
2015416 a5
Nuenber of Nominal Number of Hamangl
Allotted called up and Fully paid e s it vk
As at 1 Aprl 2015 and at 31 March 2016 233 233 233 233
As at 31 March 2016 and 2015 there were 233,478,001 shares in 1ssve.
25, Reserves
{a) Analysis of consolidated otherreserves
Tak
Merger Hadging Aevaiumtion other
Group e '*"’Em" '"“m“ iinabis
As at 1 Apnl 2015 259 {6) 47 300
Unrealised loss in theyear - 3 - (3)
As at 31 March 2016 259 (9) 47 297
Totad
Maoyger Heghging R aluaton other
Group e reserve reserve reseres
As at 1 Apni 2014 259 2 46 307
Unrealised (loss)/ gain i the year - (8} 1 (7
As 2t 31 March 2015 259 {6) 47 300

(b) Company reserves

The Company has retained earmngs of £2,527m of which £1,234m 15 not dstnbutable.
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26. Currency risk management

The Group uses vanous finangaf nstruments as hedges to reduce exposure to FX and interest rate movernents. These can mchude
forward FX contracts, currency options and cross-currency swaps All dervative financial instrurnents are niially recogrised
on the balance sheet at thewr fair vahee, adusted for transaction costs Where denvative finanaial instruments do not qualify
for hedge accounting, changes m the fair value are recognised immediately in the consohdated mcome statement, aloag with
transaction costs Where they do qualify, gains and losses are recognised according to the nature of the hedge relatronstup

and the tem being hedged Hedges are either dassified as fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or net mvestment hedges

The far values of the Group's denvative finanaal mstnuments are determined using appropnate valuation techrigues from observable
data including discounted cash flow analysis, as no active markets with quoted pnces exst for the mstruments held by the Group

The method of recogmising the movements in the fair value of a denvative depends on whether the mstrument has been
desgnated as a hedging mstrument and, if so, the nature of the exposure beng hedged To qualify for hedge accounting, the
terrns of the hedge must be documented clearly at inception and there must be an expectation that the derivative will be hughly
effectve m offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows attnbutable to the hedged nsk. Hedge effectiveness is tested
throughout the bfe of the hedge and, if at any pont it 15 concluded that the relationship can no longer be expected to reman
highly effective n achieving its objective, the accounting for the hedge relationship 1s terminated

Fair value hedges denvatrve financial mstruments are dassified as far value hedges when they hedge an exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability that 1s attnbutable to a particular nsk that could affect the consolidated ncome
statement. The hedging mstrument 1s recorded at farr value on the balance sheet, with changes in its far value being taken through
the consolidated income statement For periods in which the hedge ts shown to be effective, the gam or loss on the hedged itermn
attnbutable to the hedged nsk adjusts the cammying amount of the hedged item and is recogrised 1n the consolidated income
statement The gain or loss refatng to the neffective portion 1s recogrised in the consolidated incorme statement

Cash fiow hedges: denvatwe financial instruments are elassified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the Group's exposure
tochanges in the cash flows attnbrtable to a particutar asset or babiity or a bughly probable forecast transaction Gans or losses
on designated cash flow hedges are recogmsed directly n other comprehensive Ingome, to the extent that they are determmed Lo
be effectve Any rematning meffectve portion of the gam or loss is recogrsed mmediately in the consobdated income staternent.
On recogmtion of the hedged asset or kabality, any gains or kesses relating to the hedging mstrument that had previously been
recognised directly in other contprehensive income are mduded i the intial measurernent of the fair vatue of the asset or labity,
Whe a hedging instrument expires or & sold, or when a hedge no loriger meets the cnterna for hedge accounting, any curmadative
gan or loss m equity remamns there and s recogrised in the conscbidated mcome statement when the forecast transaction i
ulvmately recognsed When a forecast transaction 15 no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported
n other comprehensive mcome ts transferred mmedsately to the consolidated income statement

Net investment hedges changes in the value of foresgn-denommated investments due to currency movements are recogrised
directly in other comprehensive ncome The accounting treatment for a net vestment hedging nstrument, whether rt 15 a
dervative financial mstrument or a recogmised asset or liability on the balance sheet, 15 consistent with the aforernentioned treatment
for a cash flow hedge. Gains and losses accurnulated in other comprehensive income are included in the consolidated income
statement on the ultmate disposal of the forexgn-denommated mvestment The gam ar loss relating to any ineffective portion

s recogrised m the consoldated Income statement

Group

The Group presents its consofidated financial staterments in pounds sterling and conducts business in a number of other currenaes,
prinapally the dollar and euro Consequently the Group (both continuing and discontinued operations) 1s exposed to FX nsk due to

exchange rate movements which affect the Group’s transactional revenue and the ranslation of the earnings and ret assets of its

non-pound sterfing operations

(2) Transactional exposures

The Group s poficy 15 for all subsidianes to hedge their material non-functional currency transactional exposures through a combination
of farward FX contracts and options for up to two years forward Under thys policy a minmum of 75%of the forecast exposures are
hedged for the frst se months, 50% for the following six months and 25% for the next socmonths The majority of Lhese exposures
relate todoflar and euro sales ansing i pound sterling funchional cwrrency companies

The Group has contracts in place designated as cash flow hedges under IAS39 where appropnate with a total notional value of
63% of its forecast doflar and 50% of its forecast euro transactional exposures for the year to 31 March 2017 These contracts
are at average rates of $15275/f and €1 3479/£ respectively
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26. Currency risk management continued

Group continued

{b) Balance sheet translational exposures

The Group s exposed to balance sheet translational exposures at the loca! entity level where the local consoldated balance sheet
may contan monetary assets o labiities denominated in a currency ather than the entiry's functional currency Where matenal
it 1s the Group’s palicy to hedge 100% of these exposures using @ mux of forexgn currency swaps and forward FX contracts

Balance sheet translatonal exposures also anse on cansohdation as a result of the retransiabon of the balance sheet of the Group's
non-pound sterling cperabions, principatly dellar and euro, into pounds sterting, the Group's presentationa arrency The Groups
general policy s not to actively manage these exposures 5 active management using mstruments with a shorter tenure than the
underlying net asset can give rise (o a net cash outflow However, from bme to trne it will use forward FX contracts cross-curmency
swaps or non-pound steriing denofminated borrowings to mitigata these exposures, As 31 31 March 2016 the Group has $235m of
farvrard FX contracts and €100m of the 2019 frve-year senior niotes, designated as hedging msiruments aganst the underfying dallar
and eura exposures respectively As at 31 March 2016 these exposures were $7 £bn (2014715 — 81 5bn) and €0 1bn (2014/15 -
'€0,1bn}induding mtangible assets arising on cansolidauion, but before $0 2bn (201415 - 30 2bn) and €0 1bm (2014/15 — €0 1brm)
of hedging

The table below shows the actual impact on the Group s equity of movements in the dollar and euro exchange rates in terms of
transactional and transtational exposures, The table below also disclases the anbiapated inpact on the Groups equity of a 10 cent
weakenmyg, which the Group considers to be an appropnate sensithvity measure, in the dollar and ewro m terms of transactional and
trenslational exposure

2015718 012115
Doer o Total Dok P T
o m £m £m fm Em
Actualrnpact 40 (9) 31 83 (ql8}] 73
10 cent weakening (64) (8) (72) {62) (N (69)

(©) Derivative financial mstruments

Among other methods the Group uses dervative financial mstruments to mplernent its FX pohcy These mclude the use of forward
FX contracts to hedge a portion of its transactional dollar and euro exposures and cross-currency nterest rate swaps to hedge the FX
and interest rate nsks on its senior notes Where these are designated and documented as cash flow hedges in the context of 1AS39
and are demonstrated to be effective mark-to-market gains and losses are recogrised directly in other comprehensive income and
transferred to the consolidated mcome statement on derecognition of the underying item being hedged The table below presents
the carrying value of the Group s dervative financal mstruments

A5 ot 11 Marth 2016 Aaat 31 Mach 2015

AZLaFE Uabllities dszets Cabfizes

on [ U] 1] im

Forward FX contracts - cash flow hedges 3 {12) 7 {12)
Cross-currency swaps — cash flow hedges - {8} - (28)
3 {20) 7 (40)

No amounts (2014/15 — £nil) were recognised in the consahdated wicome statement in the year as a result of neffechive hedges
Farr value werarchy for the denvative financsal mstruments

As at 31 March 2016 As ot 3 Merch i 5
Lot Levet2 teveld Ll 1 irvei? Levetd
m i [ = e m
Denvatrreassets - 3 - - 7 -
Denvatveliabilities - (20) - - {40) -

In dermang fair value of all denvative mstruments as at 31 March 2016, valuation models were used which ncorporated observable
market data There were no significant nputs used m the models that were unobservable
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26, Currency risk management continued

Company

(d) Balance sheet translational exposures

The Company 1s exposed ta balance sheet translational exposures where the balance sheet contamns financal assets or habikyies
denominated in a currency other than pounds sterling While it is the Group's policy to hedge 100% of these exposures at Group
level at Company level these exposures can affect the Company’s profit after tax,

27. Related party transactions

Parent company

The Company’s immediate and ultwnate parent 15 ICAP plc, which heads the largest group of cornparses of which the Compary 5 a member
that prepares consolidated financal statements in accordance with IFRS Copees of the consolidated finanad statenments of ICAP plc can be
cbtaned from the Company Secretary ICAP pic. 2 Broadgate London ECZM 7UR or from the ICAP website at wwwicap com The
Company heads the smallest group of compames which produce consolidated financial statements.

|
Related party transactions i

Group
Yaar endad 31 March 2016 Yeur anded 31 Math 2015
survices Management sardoey
{recsived)/ Grecaead)/
nterest charges provided Interest charges provided ‘
tm i L) [,
Parent company - (3) - - (7) -
Affillate companies (13) 57} an (6) |
|
The IGHP Group had the folowing recenvable/(payable) balsnces wath related parties who are members of the ICAP pic Group: |
As 3T A5 31 |
31 March 31 Math |
e 015
(L] im
Parent company 231 158
Affiate companies {1,005) {1.039)
(774) (881)

The maonty of the Groups UK comparnies are party to a neting agreement All balances are unsecured

Related party transactions — other

(a) Exotrx Holdings Limited (Exotx)

As part of the disposal of Exotix to tPGL (a corpany controlled by Michael Spencer, the Group Chief Executive Officer) in 2007,
the Group loaned employees of Exotix Limited, a subsidiary of Exotix, £1 5m to enable them to purchase a shareholding The Group
collected revenue of £15,225,771 (2014/15 - £8,439 804) on behalf of Exotix As at 31 March 2016, there was a balance due
to Exotix from the Group of £1,473,580(2014/15 - £10,169,250) The Group balds £19m (2014415 - £19m) as collaterd
from Exotix andeposit

(b} TFS-ICAP LLC, TFS-ICAP Australia, TF5-ICAP Japan, TFS-ICAP Limited and TF5-ICAP Singapore
The Group mvoices and collects revenue on behalf of TFS-CAP LLC As at 31 March 2016 the outstanding balance from all the pint
ventures to the Group was £643,290 (2014/15 - £533 494 due from the Group)

(c) BSN Capital Partners Limited (BSN)
The Group prowdes BSN, an assoaate undertaking, with office space and faality services and also has a preferred brokerage agreement
with BSN As at 31 March 2016 the outstanding balance due to the Group was £1 192 603 (2014/15 - £497,824)

(d) CLS Aggregation Services LLC{CESAS)
The Group recharged CLSAS, an associate company, £2,908,277 (2014715 — £4,410083) as compensation for techyucal services
dunng the year As at 31 March 2016 the tota! outstanding balance due to the Group was £320,870(2014/15 - £459,588)

Related party transactions are made on an arm's-length basis
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27. Related party transactions continued
Cempany

ICAP plc s the Group's ultimate parent company and is incorporated and domiciled in the UK.
Dunng the year the Company entered nto the following transactions with subsidianes

Yaor ended Year ended

I Mhawrch 3 Mgith

w010 ms

£ [

Management servicesexpenses 38 34
Net interest fromrelated parties 40 40

Amounts owed to the Company from subsidiaries are disdosed 1n note 16 and amounts awed by the Company to subsidiaries are
disclosed w note 17

28, Post balance sheet events

On 13 Aprid 2016, the Group acquired ENSO Financial Analytics (ENSQ) a leading provider of a data analytics platform for hedge

funds and pnme brokers, from its founders (Matthew Bernard Michael Gentile and Dwaine Alleyne) and other minonty

stakeholders

The Group made its first mvestment i ENSO m June 2013 followed by a subsequent investment m October 2014 ENSGO will become
asubsidiary of ICAP's PTRI dvision The acquisition was led by Euchd Opportunuties, /CAP's earty-stage fintech investment ncubator

ENSO provides powerful portfeho analytics to the hedge fund and asset management industry tts teamn of prime brokerage asset
management, technoloqgy and data speciadists debvers identifiable and measurable operatonal nsight on counterparty credit nsk,
calateral inanagerment and portfolio financing and treasury functions With more than $1tm in total assets under adwisory ENSO
prowides operational insights and key analytics to many of the warld's most successful fund managers

On 1 June 2016, the Company transferred its nvestment in 1Swap Limited to its direct subsidiary ICAP Global Broking Heldings
Lirmited as a capstal contnbutton

On B8 July 2016, the Company transferred its entire interest in ICAP America Investments Lumited to ICAP Global 8roking
Holdings Limited in connection with a global alignment of business management and legal entity governance within the ICAP
Group

62




ICAP GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29, Group subsidiaries and related undertakings
In accordance with section 409 of the Companes Act 2006 a full list of subsidianes, jont ventures and associated undertakings, the
country of ncorporation and the effective ownership percentage as at 31 March 2016, s disclosed below All subsidianes are included
in the consohdation and all joint ventures and associated undertakings are included in the Group s finanaid statements using the equity

method of accounting
Subsidiaries

Unless otherwise stated the subsidiary underlakings betow are wholly-owned and the share capital disclosed comprises ordinary
shares or common stock (or the local equivalent thereof) which are ndirectly held by the Company These underlakings are
controfied by the Group and thew results are fully consofidated into the Group s financial statements

Wholly-owned subsidiaries

Comparry name Country of Incorporation Norh Cormpary name Coumtry of incorporation ot
Altex-ATS Limited UX Exco Noonan Pension LLC s 6
BrokerTec Amencas LLC Us 6 Garban Harlow Resources bmited UK

BrokerTec Eurape Lirmted UK Garban Internabonal UK

BrokerTec Global Holdings Limited UK 1 ﬁf':::aeg-lﬂmrcamtal (2001) UK

BrokerTec Holdings Inc uUs ﬁiﬁggﬁ?fjgﬁﬁ; Limited UK

BrokerTec Investments UK ﬁi;ﬁ:::g{:g ;t]a)l E‘:’m ed (V.4

Camtal Shipbrokers LI P ux 2 S?nc:rs::i Astley & Pearce (Hakdings) UK

Capital Shipbroking Limited 14 Harlow (London) Lirruted [H 4

EBS Dealing Resources tnternational UK Howe Rebinson Stupping (India) India

Limited Private Limited

€85 Dealing Resources Inc. us ICAP Amenca Investments lrmited UK 5
Eiig:ahng Resaurces Japan Japan KCAP AP (Singapore) Pte Limited Singapore

85 Anancial Technologies Lumuted  Israel mﬁoﬁg Holdings North s 6
EBS Global Faality Limmted Uk ICAP Capital Markets LLC us 6
EBS Global Haldings Limited UK 1 ICAP Corporates LLC us 6
EBS Group Limited UK ICAP Electromic Markets Lirmted UK s
EBS Holdco nc us ICAP Energy AS Norway

EBS lvestments 1. ICAP Energy Limited UK

EBS No 2 Limited UK ICAP Crergy LIC us [
EBS No 4 LLC us 6 ICAP Energy Suisse SA Switzerland

EBS Serwice Company Lermuted Switzerland ICAP Equities Asia Limited Hong Kang

Euchd Opportunibes Limited UK ICAP Lurope Limited UK

Euchd Opportunities SA Luxembourq ICAP Finance Limited uK 5
Exco Nominees Lirmated Ux ICAP Financial Products Pte Ltd Singapore
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29. Group subsidiaries and relatedundertakings continued

Wholly-owned subsidianes continued
Campary apme Country of Nots Company ram Country ":m Nate
ICAP Forexgn Exchange Brokerage Republic of ICAP Secunties & Derivatives WK
Limited Korea Exchange Lirrted
ICAP Futures Holdings Inc Us ICAP Secunbies (No 1) BV Netherlands
ICAP Global Broking Holdings UK ICAP Secunties (No. 2) BV, Netherlands
ICAP Global Brolang Inc us m!::;cunnes Hong kong Hong Kong
ICAP Global Broking Investments X KCAP Securities Uruted 14
ICAP Global Dervatives Limited UK ICAP Securities USA LLC U5 3]
ICAP Global Information Services
Limited (V4 ICAP SEF (US) LLC us
ICAP Global Investments Inc Us ICAP Services No i Cubraltar
ICAP Holdings (Asxa Paofic) Lumited UK ICAP Services No 2 Gebraltar
ICAP Holdings (EMEA) Limted UK lch,zp Services NorthAmenca g 6
IL(;erm!:El-;oldlngs (tatn Amenca) UK ICAP Shapping (G y) GrbH  Gesmany
ICAP 1 loldings (UK) Limited UK :_C"i:i:;"p”’"g (Hong Kang) Hong Xong
ICAP Holdings (USA) LLC us ICAP Shipping (Shangha) Co China
Limited
ICAP Shipping Denvatives
ICAP Holdings Limited 1/4 Lrted UK V7
ICAP Hyde Haldngs Liruted UK :f::;esdhppmg Interma UK 5
ICAP IEB Z Limited UK 1 ICAP Shipping LiRuted UK.
ICAP Shipping Middle East United Arab
ICAP Information Services Inc, us DMCCO Ernwrates
ICAP Information Services Lututed LK :(igp Shipping Sngapare Pte Singapore
Lcr;’:ie“;‘e‘“am“a' investrments K ICAP Shipping Tankers Lemited UK
ICAP Investment Holdings Inc Us :fr::\.‘z:druppmg Tankers Pte Singapare
ICAP Investments LL.C us ICAP Spot USALLC Us 4]
ICAP Latin American Holdings B V Netherlands ICAP UK Investments No 1 UK
ICAP Luxembourg Holdings
(No 1) SARL Luxernbourg ICAP UK Investments No 2 U
{CAP Luxembourg Holdings
(No 2) SARL Luxemnbourg ICAP Unuted Inc. us
ICAP Luxembourg Services Gibraftar ICAP US Fmnancial Services LLC  US K]
1CAP Management Services Hong
Konq Limited Hong Kang ICAP US Holdings Mo 1 limited  Gibraltar
ICAP Management Services Limited UK ICAP US Holdngs No 2 Lymited  Gibraltar
:MCAiehé\HBgemmt Services Private Singapare ICAP US investment Company U4
ICAP Media LLC Us ICAP WCLK Limited UK
perty H
ICAP Merger Company LLC s a::ellectual Pro ddings s
New Intercaprtal Management
ICAP New Zealand Limited Zealand Services No 2 Limited UK 3
Intercapital Management
ICAP North Amenca LLC us Services Pte Ltd Singapare
Intercapital Sernces Narth
ICAP Post Trade Holdings Limited i Amenca LLC us 6
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29. Group subsidlaries and related undertakings continued

Wholly-owned subsidianes conttnued

Subsihanes where the effective interest i less than

100%
Corey o Cond | o -
Linkbrokers Dervatives LLC us 6 'S‘C:'; Colombia Holdings -\ 1 s 611
Midhurst Chartenng Limited UK \CAP Phil e Phlippines 999 3
MKI Securities International, Limuted [1]4 1

ICAP Tolan Securities Japan 60 6
Malten Markets Inc us Co Lud
Nexstep HK 2 Limited Hang Kong 'Ls:rwnipe:UD NZO Pty Austraba 501
Nexstep HK 3 Limited Hong Kong 1Swap Euro | imuted LUK 501
ReMatch Holdings Lirited UK 5 10
ReMatch Inc. ™ 1Swap Lunited UK S0 .
ReMatch Limited UK 1Swap US inc us 501
2! di P

eset Holdings Private Lamited Singapore Fo——p—s - o .

Reset Private Lumted Singapore 3.4 Management LLC
The Link Asset & Secunhies Company
(Proprietary) Limited South Africa PT ICAP Indonesia Indanesia 85
The Link Assel and Securibies Company Uk Traiana Lmited UK 867
Limited
TnOptma AB Sweden T, 3'3":; Technologies 1srael 867

Lirmite:
TrnOptima Asia Pacific Pte Lumited Singapare
TriOpuma Japan K K. Japan Traiana, Inc. Us 867 4
TnOptima North Amenca LLC us &
TnOptima UK Limited UK

Bntsh Virgin

Vantage Capital Holdings Lid telands
Wnightson ICAP LLC Us 6
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29. Group subsidiaries and related undertakings contirued
Related undertakings
Assotiated undertakings
Unless otherwise stated the share capetal disclosed compnses ordinary shares or common stock {or the kocal equivalent thereaf) which
are indirectly held by the Company The ownership percentage is prowded for each associated undertaking

N IGHP % IGHA
Company nzme Country of ownershp Hoze Company nine ic"""": o ownership Nate
Howe Robinson
Abide Financial Lemirted UK 300 11,12 Partners (Gibraltar} Gubraltar 350
Liuied
Howe Robinson
AcadsaSoft Inc us 250 13 Partrers (UK) Limited uw 350
Amanah Butler Malaysia Howe Robinson
Sdn Bhd Malaysia 321 Partrers Pte Ltd Singapore 350 3
Automated Confirmation ICAP Bio Crganic §
Service Limited w 303 de RL de CV Mexico 250 2
Ef:tgp'ta' Portners X 251 OpenGarmma tne. S 154 18
Plataforma Mexicana
BSN Capital Partners LLC U5 251 B de Carbono S de RL  Mexxo 500 2
deCv
BSN Holdings Limited an‘“a“ 251 4,5 SIFAgro SAdeCV  Mexico 500
Capital Stupbrokers Hang SIF ICAP Chile
Liuted Xong 300 14 Holdings Ltda Chie 00 2
Central Totan Secuites  jpan 200 SIFICAP OWleSpA Chile 300
CLS Aggregation Services SIF ICAP Denvados
LLC us 425 6 SAdeCV Mexico 500 19
Corretaje e Informaciin SIF ICAP Servicios
Monectana y de Divisas Span 25 4 SAdeCV Mexco 200 20
Datos Técrucos SA Peru 250 Totan ICAP Co, Ltd Japan 400
Duco Technology Limeted UK 407 15
Enso Financial
Management LLP us 200 2
Enso LP Jersey 420 2,16
Exotix Holdings Luruted UK 218
Exoix Investment,
Partners LLP UK 205 25
::Zt Braokers Secunties us 400 617
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29, Group subsidiaries and related undertakings contirued

Related undertakings continued

Jomnt ventures

The ownership percentage s provided for eachjant venture These
undertakings are indirectly held by the Company

% WP

Country of exe
Company name e
BCIE-ICAP Capttal

Markets S A deCV Mexico 00 i
Patshare Limited UK 500
SIFICAP SA deCV Mexco 500
SET-ICAPFXSA Colombia 361
SET-1CAP SecuritiesS A Colombia 325
TFS-ICAP Holdings LLC Us 450
TFS-ICAP LLC us 230
Notes

1 Inboguidationas at 31 March 2016

2 interest

3 Aordinary shares or A ordinery common stock

4 Bordmary shares or B ordinary common stock

5. Dwecty heldby ICAP pi

B Membershpinterest

7 Ordnetyshaesand deemable non-cumuative preference shares

8 Acommon shares, B common shares and series B preferred shares

9 Aordirary shares (95.9%)

10 Bordinary shares snd A2 shares

11 D orcknary shares

12. E ordinary sheres

13, Seriers B-conwertible prefemed stock (11 15.and seres D convertible prefemed stock (37 4X)
14 Aordinary shares (509 and D orclingry shaces {45%)

15 Aordinary shanes {96 9%)

16 Class A units (37%) and daxs Bunlts (15.29%)

17 GassBunits

18 Scries C prefermed stock (66. 2%}

19. Serles!ordinary shares and series i ordinary shares

20, Seres [Bthares
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Definitions and glossary

ccp
central counterparty

CDS
credit defaultswaps

cGu
cash generatingurut

Companies Act
Companies Act 2006 (as srended)

Company or ICAP
ICAP plc (formerly Garban-Intercapital plc and Garban plc)

CRD
Capital Requirements Directive

doflaror §
unless otherwise specified all references to dollars or § dollar
symbol are to the currency of the US

EPS
earnings per share

EV
European Union

FCA
Financial ConductAuthonty

ACC
Fixed Income Clearmng Corporation

Atch
Fitch Ratings Limited

FX
foresgn exchange

Garban
Garban plc

Gop
gross domestic product
GFC

Group Finance Commuttee

Group
the Company and its subsidiary undertakings

IAS
International Accounting Standards

1ASB
internabional Accounting Standards Body

ICAAP
internal capital adequacy assessment process

ICAP shares
ICAP plc ordinary shares of 10peach
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IFRS
International Finanaial Reporting Standards

1GBB

ICAP’s global hybnd voice broking and information busimness,
including ICAP's associated technology and broking platforms
(including 1-Swap and Fusion) and certain of ICAP s joint ventures
andassociates

s
ICAP information Services

PGL
IPGL (Holdings) Limuted

1SDA
tnternational Swaps and Denvatives Associalion

Libor
London interbank offered rate

MIFID
Markets in Financial Instruments Directive

Moody’s
Moody's Investors Services

Newco

ICAP Newco plc, a public irmited company incorporated
in England and Wales with regstered number
10013770, whose registered office 15 at 2 Broadgate,
London EC2M 7UR

NSCC
National Secunties Clearing Corporabon

orc

over-the-counter markets in which nstruments are traded
directly between participants by tefephone and/ar electromucally
rather than via an exchange

PTRI
Post Trade Rrsk and nformation

PwC
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

RCF
revohing credit facility

Reset
Reset Holdings Private Lrmited and its subsichares

SEF
swap execution faciity

SPA
Agreement for the sale and purchase of the share capital of ICAP
Global Brokung Holdings Ltd dated 11 Novernber 2015

Tibor
Tokyo tnterbank offeredrate
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Definltions and glossary continued

TP ICAP
Enlargad Tudlett Prebon on completion of the Transaction

Traiana
Traiana, Inc. and itssubsidianes

Transaction

the proposed disposal of IGBB by Lhe ICAP plc Group
to Tullett Prebon as set out n the arcula and
explanatory statement ssued to shareholders of
ICAP pic on 1 March 2016
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Treasury Shares

shares as defined by the Compames Acquisition of Own Shares
{(Treasury Shares) Regulations 2003 which came nto force on
1 Decemnber 2003

TriOptima
TnOpbma AB and itssubsidianies

Tullett Prebon

Tullett Prebon ple, a company registered in England and Wales
with regsstered number 05807599 whose registered office 15
at Tower 42, Level 37, 25 Old Broad Streeet London EC2N 1HQ




